




�It was the best of times, it was the worst of
times, it was the age of wisdom, it was the
age of foolishness, it was the epoch of belief,
it was the epoch of incredulity, it was the
season of Light, it was the season of
Darkness, it was the spring of hope, it was
the winter of despair...�

A Tale of Two Cities, Charles Dickens 1859

****

This report to shareholders covers the year ending December 31, 2019 and also
addresses the previously reported periods ending September 2020 and other relevant
subsequent events.

****

The coronavirus COVID-19 has reminded us that our increasingly interconnected world
requires the focus and humility to accept change and be adaptable to that change with a
new view towards preparedness, having the recognition to plan for the certainty of
uncertainty. In this context, it is the health and safety of LGL�s stakeholders that is the top
priority. The well-being of our people and employees across operations in Orlando, South
Dakota, Noida India and Hong Kong is paramount.

****

The Company�s objective is to create value for shareholders through the judicious allocation
of its resources broadly, coupled with the growth of its owned operations. The LGL Group is
focused on being a careful steward of shareholder capital, having navigated many market
cycles and disruptions while safeguarding investments and making decisions that enable
the Company to emerge stronger. The principal operating subsidiaries of LGL are MtronPTI
and Precision Time and Frequency (PTF). The Company�s other assets include cash,
various net operating losses that are helpful in improving after tax shareholder returns, and
investments, including its largest, a partnership interest in LGL Systems Acquisition Holding
LLC., the sponsor of the Special Purpose Acquisition Corporation (�SPAC�) LGL Systems
Acquisition Corp. (NYSE:DFNS).

The year ended December 31, 2019 with $18.0 million in cash and marketable securities
and no debt. This total of cash and marketable securities increased for the period ending
through September 30, 2020 to $22.9 million. These figures exclude the Company�s $3.35
million investment in LGL Systems Acquisition Holding Company, LLC.



2019

LGL operations were strong for 2019, reporting respectable relative financial performance;
the group revenue increased 28% to $31.9 million, net income before a sizeable tax benefit
increased 79%, and adjusted EBITDA grew more than two-fold. The order backlog from
operations expanded 25%, and book-to-bill expanded even as throughput increased. The
divisional goals for 2019 were to drive free cash, to broaden the reach of the product portfolio
while including new technologies that addressed a wider spectrum of frequencies, and
ultimately migrate towards integrated assemblies to better capture customer requirements.

LGL investments are diversified with the majority of its portfolio oriented towards capital
preservation, including U.S. Treasuries and other non-market correlated surrogates. The
Company invested $3.35 million of at risk capital in the partnership sponsoring the LGL
SPAC, representing roughly a 43.5% net economic interest as of September 2020. The
SPAC trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol �DFNS�, and was listed in
late 2019 with a $172.5 million-dollar trust account. The SPAC extends the Company�s
strategic reach as DFNS is singularly focused on acquiring a business in the Aerospace and
Defense industry of considerable size, and is organized around a team of industry
professionals. Please visit the www.dfns.ai for more information.

The Company�s sponsor investment supporting the SPAC offers potential returns while also
providing increasingly positive network effects for the benefit of LGL Group�s shareholders.

In sum, the 2019�s progress was reflected in the stock price, which opened the year in
January 2019 at roughly $6 per share and closed at year end December roughly at $15 per
share.

****

2020

While the principal developments for the LGL Group in 2019 exhibited strong footings, 2020
presented new challenges. The Company is considered an essential business for its work
in the medical, defense communications, and aerospace industries. The professionals
across the Company navigated these challenges with prudence and strength on behalf of
customers and shareholders.

We thus use this opportunity to acknowledge the Company�s professional team; the global
set of employees that form the bedrock of the LGL Group. Their commitment to one another
and the customer during the coronavirus pandemic closures was exceptional. The entire
organization worked relentlessly to solve problems as they emerged this year. This year
every facility, from Orlando, Yankton, India, and Hong Kong, experienced some form of
supply chain disruptions, national shutdowns, and friction in the normal ways of doing
business. And while MtronPTI offers customers the advantage of products that benefit from
a secure and reliable supply chain, the experiences of 2020 offered an opportunity to rethink,
reorganize, and re-plan in ways that should ultimately benefit the Company. Stakeholder
involvement is also part of this process.



For example, the lobbying efforts of the General Electric Company (GE) with the
Government of India allowed MtronPTI to reopen its Noida India operations against a
national lockdown. MtronPTI supplies GE with critical components for the medical and
healthcare equipment used in respiration ventilators.

These are unusual times. That makes them all the more usual times. While we remain
cautious and there is still considerable risk on the horizon, LGL Group has built a platform
that is ready to move forward opportunistically into the future. The business of LGL appears
to be positioned well for the years to come.

****

This year the Board strengthened its roster with the additions of Mr. John Mega and Mr.
Robert �Rob� LaPenta. We welcome their experience.

LGL�s Board of Directors declared a warrant dividend to holders of record of LGL common
stock as of November 9th 2020 as a means of distributing value to its stockholders. The
warrants trade under the symbol LGL WS. Additional information can be found on the
Company�s website or through the public filings. http://www.lglgroup.com/WarrantFAQ

Finally, the LGL Group recognizes Michael Ferrantino Sr., the Company�s long time CEO,
who departed effective December 31, 2019. The Board is grateful for his leadership over the
years. We extend a heartfelt thank you to Michael on behalf of the whole LGL family. We
wish him a happy retirement and the best in his new ventures.

The Board of Directors is always receptive to feedback, so if shareholders have any
questions or comments please do get in touch directly with our corporate officers, whose
contact details are available on the Company�s website.

We thank you for your confidence.

Marc Gabelli Ivan Arteaga

Chairman Chief Executive



Operations

MTronPTI realized several advancements in 2019 including the following;

 growth investments in additional clean
room and secure area capacity

 added key resources to expand our
design capabilities into new filter
technologies and module assemblies

 expanded the India manufacturing
footprint

 continued cost reductions and process
improvements

 furthered yield enhancement efforts
 accelerated our market expansion into

Space products
 welcoming Mr. Bill Drafts to head MtronPTI as its CEO

We continue to enjoy solid long-term relationships with our client base with a core
competency in delivering highly-engineered frequency and spectrum control solutions and
timing control modules.

Since restructuring in 2013, the LGL Group has successfully reoriented away from
commoditized markets facing fierce
competition in price and demand, to become a
reliable supplier of critical components and
modules, notably, to the military and
aerospace markets. The key customer
channels of military, aerospace (�mil-aero�)
and space, place high value on the highly
engineered and rugged customized solutions
our team is capable of providing.



The year 2019 continued MtronPTI�s journey from a high volume, commoditized, lower
technology component supplier to a highly engineered, technical solutions supplier. The
pie charts illustrate the revenue migration by market segment, with Military and Aerospace
today representing over 75% of sales.

Despite the backdrop, the year 2020 saw the
launch of several new differentiated products,
adding improved technologies to our product
portfolio while also integrating existing
technical designs into microwave modules.
The robust and reliable product mix is
improving MTronPTI�s market awareness
and branding across customers, gaining
traction with several focused market
campaigns targeting verticals that enhance
the Company�s historic brand equity. These
efforts are expected to lead a broader
portfolio suite of products, solutions and technologies, allowing us to continue our market
diversification and market share gains.

MtronPTI is well positioned to further the current operational strategy of pursuing
opportunities requiring highly engineered, high product margin products in the mil-aero and
space markets.





UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, DC 20549

FORM 10-K
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended: December 31, 2019
OR

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934

For the transition period from _________________ to ______________________
Commission file number: 001-00106

The LGL Group, Inc.
(Exact name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

Delaware 38-1799862
(State or Other Jurisdiction of
Incorporation or Organization)

(I.R.S. Employer
Identification No.)

2525 Shader Road, Orlando, Florida 32804
(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (407) 298-2000
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class
Trading
Symbol(s) Name of each exchange on which registered

Common Stock, par value $0.01 LGL NYSE American
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes
No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes
No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such
reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.
Yes No
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted
pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that
the registrant was required to submit such files).
Yes No
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller
reporting company, or emerging growth company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer," "smaller
reporting company" and �emerging growth company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.:
Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer
Non-accelerated filer Smaller reporting company
Emerging growth company
If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for
complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes No
The aggregate market value of the registrant's voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates of the registrant,
based upon the $8.15 per share closing price of the registrant's common stock on June 28, 2019, the last business day of the
registrant's most recently completed second fiscal quarter, was $23,907,854. Solely for the purpose of this calculation, shares held
by directors and executive officers of the registrant have been excluded. Such exclusion should not be deemed a determination or
an admission by the registrant that such individuals are, in fact, affiliates of the registrant.
The number of outstanding shares of the registrant's common stock was 5,210,788 as of March 27, 2020.



THE LGL GROUP, INC.

Page
PART I

Item 1. Business. ............................................................................................................................................ 1
Item 1A. Risk Factors. ...................................................................................................................................... 6
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.............................................................................................................. 13
Item 2. Properties. .......................................................................................................................................... 13
Item 3. Legal Proceedings. ............................................................................................................................ 13
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.................................................................................................................... 13

PART II

Item 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities. .......................................................................................................................... 14

Item 6. Selected Financial Data. .................................................................................................................... 15
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. ........... 16
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk. ......................................................... 18
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. ................................................................................ 18
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure. .......... 18
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.................................................................................................................... 18
Item 9B. Other Information. ............................................................................................................................. 19

PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers and Corporate Governance. ......................................................... 20
Item 11. Executive Compensation. .................................................................................................................. 22
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters. .............................................................................................................................................. 23
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.................................. 25
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services............................................................................................ 26

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules. .................................................................................... 27
Item 16. Form 10-K Summary......................................................................................................................... 29



1

PART I

Caution Concerning Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report on Form 10-K (this "Report") and the Company's (as defined below) other communications and
statements may contain "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, including statements about
the Company's beliefs, plans, objectives, goals, expectations, estimates, projections and intentions. These statements
are subject to significant risks and uncertainties and are subject to change based on various factors, many of which
are beyond the Company's control. The words "may," "could," "should," "would," "believe," "anticipate,"
"estimate," "expect," "intend," "plan," "target," "goal," and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-
looking statements. All forward-looking statements, by their nature, are subject to risks and uncertainties. The
Company's actual future results may differ materially from those set forth in the Company's forward-looking
statements. For information concerning these factors and related matters, see "Risk Factors" in Part I, Item 1A in this
Report, and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in Part II,
Item 7 in this Report. However, other factors besides those referenced could adversely affect the Company's results,
and you should not consider any such list of factors to be a complete set of all potential risks or uncertainties. Any
forward-looking statements made by the Company herein speak as of the date of this Report. The Company does not
undertake to update any forward-looking statement, except as required by law. As a result, you should not place
undue reliance on these forward-looking statements.

Item 1. Business.

The LGL Group, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, the "Company," "LGL," "we," "us," or "our") is a globally-
positioned producer of industrial and commercial products and services. We operate in two identified segments. Our
electronic components segment is currently focused on the design and manufacture of highly-engineered, high
reliability frequency and spectrum control products. These electronic components ensure reliability and security in
aerospace and defense communications, low noise and base accuracy for laboratory instruments, and synchronous
data transfers throughout the wireless and Internet infrastructure. Our electronic instruments segment is focused on
the design and manufacture of high-performance Frequency and Time reference standards that form the basis for
timing and synchronization in various applications. The Company was incorporated in 1928 under the laws of the
State of Indiana, and in 2007, the Company was reincorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware as The LGL
Group, Inc. We maintain our executive offices at 2525 Shader Road, Orlando, Florida, 32804. Our telephone
number is (407) 298-2000. Our common stock is traded on the NYSE American under the symbol "LGL."

We operate through our two principal subsidiaries, M-tron Industries, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries,
"MtronPTI"), which has design and manufacturing facilities in Orlando, Florida; Yankton, South Dakota; and
Noida, India, and Precise Time and Frequency, LLC ("PTF"), which has a design and manufacturing facility in
Wakefield, Massachusetts. We also have local sales and customer support offices in Sacramento, California; Austin,
Texas; and Hong Kong.

Our primary objective is to create long-term growth with a market-based approach of designing and offering new
products to our customers through both organic research and development, and through strategic partnerships, joint
ventures, acquisitions or mergers. We seek to leverage our core strength as an engineering leader to expand client
access, add new capabilities and continue to diversify our product offerings. Our focus is on investments that will
differentiate us, broaden our portfolio and lead toward higher levels of integration organically and through joint
venture, merger and acquisition opportunities. We believe that successful execution of this strategy will lead to a
transformation of our product portfolio towards longer product life cycles, better margins and improved competitive
position.

Overview of MtronPTI

Originally founded in 1965, MtronPTI designs, manufactures and markets highly-engineered, high reliability
frequency and spectrum control products.

These component-level devices are used extensively in infrastructure equipment for the telecommunications and
network equipment industries, as well as in electronic systems for applications in defense, aerospace, earth-orbiting
satellites, down-hole drilling, medical devices, instrumentation, industrial devices and global positioning systems.
As an engineering-centric company, MtronPTI provides close support to the customer throughout its products' entire
life cycle, including product design, prototyping, production, and subsequent product upgrades. This collaborative
approach has resulted in the development of long-standing business relationships with its blue-chip customer base.
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All of MtronPTI�s production facilities are ISO 9001:2008 certified, ITAR registered and Restriction of Hazardous
Substances (�RoHS�) compliant. In addition, its U.S. production facilities in Orlando and Yankton are AS9100 Rev
D and MIL-STD-790 certified.

MtronPTI Products

MtronPTI's portfolio is divided into two product groupings, Frequency Control and Spectrum Control, and has
expanded from primarily crystal-based components to include higher levels of integration, advanced materials
science, cavity-based products, and various types of compensation methods employing integrated circuits and other
methods to create products geared for applications that require high reliability in harsh environments. These
products are differentiated by their precise level of accuracy, their stability over time and within harsh environments,
and their very low phase noise.

MtronPTI's Frequency Control product group includes a broad portfolio of XTAL, clock oscillators, VCXO, TCXO
OCXO and DOCXO devices which meet some of the tightest specifications, including IEEE 1588 standards. These
devices may be based on quartz, quartz MEMS, or advanced materials science designed to achieve higher
performance levels than quartz. MtronPTI's products offer high reliability over a wide temperature range and are
well-suited for harsh environments, including shock and vibration-resistant oscillators with low-g sensitivity. These
products are designed for applications within aerospace and defense, telecommunications infrastructure and
instrumentation markets.

MtronPTI's Spectrum Control product group includes a wide array of radio frequency (�RF�), microwave and
millimeter wave filters and diplexers covering a frequency range from 1 MHz to 90 GHz, and solid-state power
amplifiers covering a frequency range from 300 MHz to 26 GHz, with power output from 10 Watts to 10 kWatts.
Filter devices include crystal, ceramic, LC, tubular, combline, cavity, interdigital and metal insert waveguide, as
well as digital, analog and mechanical tunable filters, switched filter arrays and RF subsystems. Power amplifiers
add active devices to MtronPTI's portfolio and include GaN, GaAS FET, LDMOS and chip and wire technologies in
narrow or broadband, module or rack-mounted packages. These products are employed in applications within the
aerospace, defense and commercial markets.

New product development continues to be a key focus for MtronPTI as it continues to push its roadmap to meet the
needs of its served markets. Within Frequency Control, design efforts are focused on smaller packages, lower
power, and use of new materials to provide compensation and harsh environment performance that surpasses
customer requirements. Spectrum Control seeks to develop higher power handling, higher levels of integration and a
range of integrated products within the RF subsystem.

Overview of PTF

PTF designs, manufactures and markets for sale time and frequency products. The industries PTF serves include
computer networking, satellite earth stations, electric utilities, broadcasting, and telecommunication systems. PTF
was originally founded in 2002 and the company's assets were acquired by LGL in September 2016 through a
business acquisition, making us a broader-based supplier of highly engineered products for the generation of time
and frequency references for synchronization and control. Since its inception, PTF has developed a comprehensive
portfolioff of time and frequency instruments complemented by a wide range of ancillary products such as distribution
amplifiers and redundancy auto switches.

PTF Products

PTF's products range from simple, low cost time and frequency solutions, to premium products designed to deliver
maximum performance for the most demanding applications. PTF's products include Frequency and Time Reference
Standards, distribution amplifiers, redundancy auto switches and NTP servers, all of which are used in a broad range
of applications worldwide.

PTF's Frequency and Time Reference Standards include quartz Frequency Standards, GPS/GNS Frequency and
Time Standards and rubidium atomic Frequency Standards. The de facto standard for many highly demanding
applications, such as satellite communications, is PTF's range of GPS/GNS disciplined quartz frequency and time
standards. Because of the high quality quartz oscillators utilized they deliver outstanding phase noise and short-term
stability performance for applications where low noise is paramount. This outstanding short-term performance,
coupled with the long-term stability and accuracy of the external GPS/GNS reference, provides the user excellent
all-around performance that is highly cost-effective.
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When two or more computers are involved, accurate time keeping is a challenge especially when the computers are
in different locations. PTF's range of GNS Time and Frequency References and Network Time Servers deliver a
high level of performance that allows customers to synchronize to Universal Time Coordinated, in a number of cost-
effective forms to meet a multitude of time and frequency reference requirements. Applications range from low
phase noise, highly stable and accurate, system frequency references for Sat-Com and Digital Broadcasting
applications, to computer networks, shipboard time code references and e-commerce time stamping applications.

PTF's portfolio of distribution amplifiers covers multiple signal types including RF, digital, time code, configurable
and optical. The distribution range is designed to complement the high quality of the frequency and time references
and provide the most effective cost/performance solution for the application, including options for full remote
monitoring/control (including RF analog signal monitoring) and optional level control.

The distribution product range includes standard fixed configuration units with either 12 or 16 channels, together
with more flexible units that allow the user to define specific configurations including different types of input/output
signals combined into a convenient 1U or 2U package with up to 36 output channels.

PTF's series of redundancy auto switches range from simple level detection through to highly sophisticated sensing
capability, extremely fast switching options and full Ethernet connectivity, to provide remote monitoring control,
and including integration with SNMP management systems. The most recent model includes multi-channel input
capability as well as the ability to switch up to three input types of signals.

Customers

We primarily work directly with original equipment manufacturers (�OEMs�) to define the right solutions for their
unique applications, including the design of custom parts with unique part numbers. Actual sales of production parts
may be directly to the OEM or through either their designated contract manufacturers or through franchised
distributors of our products. As a result, we have highly-skilled sales engineers who work directly with the designers
and program managers at their OEMs, providing a high-level of engineering support at all points within the process.

In 2019, our largest customer, an electronics contract manufacturing company in the aerospace and defense markets,
accounted for $5,522,000, or 17.3%, of the Company's total revenues, compared to $4,436,000, or 17.8%, in 2018.

As of December 31, 2019, four of our largest customers accounted for approximately $1,841,000, or 40%, of
accounts receivable. As of December 31, 2018, four of our largest customers accounted for approximately
$1,043,000, or 30%, of accounts receivable. The insolvency of any of these customers could have a material adverse
impact on our liquidity.

Research and Development

Utilizing our understanding of market requirements, we employ a disciplined approach to capital allocation when
selecting new product development projects. A cross-functional team comprised of engineering, marketing,
operations, sales and finance reviews the merits of specific projects, seeking to invest in products that will exceed a
specific return on investment level and a payback expectation within one to two years. In addition, the team
considers the inherent value of intellectual property that each project presents with consideration for technical
roadmap objectives.

Research and development expense was approximately $2,004,000 and $1,947,000 in 2019 and 2018, respectively,
and will remain a significant part of the Company's efforts to revitalize our intellectual property position.

Marketing and Sales

We have a highly skilled team of sales engineers who work in tandem with a worldwide network of more than 30
independent external manufacturer representatives and franchised electronics distributors to market and sell our
products. An important part of the sales process is gaining qualification of specific products from the OEM,
confirming suitability for use in a specific system design, which is commonly referred to as a "design-win." Through
direct contact with our clients and through our representative network, we are able to understand the needs of the
marketplace and then guide our product development process to allocate resources to meeting those requirements.
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Seasonality

Our business is not seasonal, although shipment schedules may be affected by the production schedules of our
customers or their contract manufacturers based on regional practices or customs.

Domestic Revenues

Our domestic revenues were $23,397,000 in 2019, or 73.4% of total consolidated revenues, compared to
$18,673,000, or 75.1% of total consolidated revenues, in 2018.

International Revenues

Our international revenues were $8,500,000 in 2019, or 26.6% of total consolidated revenues, compared to
$6,197,000, or 24.9% of total consolidated revenues, in 2018. In each of 2019 and 2018, these revenues were
derived mainly from customers in Asia, with significant sales in Malaysia. We avoid significant currency exchange
risk by transacting and settling substantially all of our international sales in United States dollars.

Order Backlog

Our order backlog was $21,857,000 and $17,506,000 as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The backlog
of unfilled orders includes amounts based on signed contracts as well as agreed letters of intent, which we have
determined are firm orders and likely to proceed. Although backlog represents only firm orders that are considered
likely to be fulfilled within the 12 months following receipt of the order, cancellations or scope adjustments may and
do occur.

Order backlog is adjusted quarterly to reflect project cancellations, deferrals, revised project scope and cost. We
expect to fill our entire 2019 order backlog in 2020, but cannot provide assurances as to what portion of the order
backlog will be fulfilled in a given year

Investment in SPAC

The Company has invested $3.35 million in LGL Systems Acquisition Holding Company, LLC, who serves as the
sponsor (the �Sponsor�) of LGL Systems Acquisition Corp., a special purpose acquisition company, commonly
referred to as a �SPAC�, or blank check company, formed for the purpose of effecting a business combination in the
aerospace, defense and communications industries (the �SPAC�).

The Sponsor holds 20% of the shares in the SPAC along with 5,200,000 warrants at a strike price of $11.50. On
November 7, 2019, the SPAC raised $172.5 million through the sale of 17.25 million shares and was listed as a
publicly traded company on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the ticker symbol �DFNS�. The IPO closed on
November 12, 2019. Prior to and immediately following the IPO, the Sponsor held 4,312,500 shares of the SPAC,
which are restricted and non-tradable.

If the SPAC does not complete a business combination within 24 months from the closing of the SPAC�s initial
public offering, the proceeds from the sale of the private warrants will be used to fund the redemption of the shares
sold in the SPAC�s initial public offering (subject to the requirements of applicable law), and the private warrants
will expire worthless.

Raw Materials

Generally, most raw materials used in the production of our products are available in adequate supply from a
number of sources and the prices of these raw materials are relatively stable. However, some raw materials,
including printed circuit boards, quartz and certain metals including steel, aluminum, silver, gold, tantalum and
palladium, are subject to greater supply fluctuations and price volatility, as experienced in recent years. In general,
we have been able to include some cost increases in our pricing, but in some cases our margins were adversely
impacted.

Recently, the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) (the �coronavirus�) has caused a global pandemic that
has disrupted supply chains and the ability to obtain components and raw materials around the world for most
companies, including us. The short-term and long-term impact of the coronavirus pandemic on our ability to obtain
the raw materials necessary to conduct our business and operations is not yet fully understood; however, the
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inability to obtain the raw materials required for our business would have a material negative effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

Competition

We design, manufacture and market products for the generation, synchronization and control of time and frequency
as well as spectrum control products. There are numerous domestic and international manufacturers who are capable
of providing custom-designed products comparable in quality and performance to our products. Our competitive
strategy begins with our focus on niche markets where precise specification and reliability are the major
requirements. Competitors in our electronic components segment include, but are not limited to, Vectron
International (a division of Knowles Corporation), K&L Microwave (a division of Dover Corporation),
Symmetricom (a division of Microsemi Corporation), and Rakon Limited. Competitors in our electronic instruments
segment include, but are not limited to, Symmetricom, Spectracom Corporation and Brandywine Communications.

Shelf Offering and ATM

The Company filed a shelf registration statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-235767), as filed by the Company with
the SEC on December 31, 2019, relating to $90,000,000 of its securities, which was declared effective on January 8,
2020.

On January 22, 2020, the Company entered into an Open Market Sale Agreement (the �Agreement�) with Jefferies
LLC, as sales agent (�Jefferies�), pursuant to which the Company may offer and sell, from time to time, through
Jefferies, shares of the Company�s common stock, par value $0.01 per share, having an aggregate offering price of
up to $15,000,000 (the �Shares�). Shares sold under the Agreement will be issued pursuant to the shelf registration
statement. The Company filed a prospectus supplement with the SEC on January 23, 2020 in connection with the
offer and sale of the common shares pursuant to the Agreement.

The Company is not obligated to sell any Shares under the Agreement. Subject to the terms and conditions of the
Agreement, Jefferies will use commercially reasonable efforts, consistent with its normal trading and sales practices
and applicable laws and regulations, to sell Shares from time to time based upon the Company�s instructions,
including any price, time or size limits specified by the Company, subject to certain limitations. Under the
Agreement, Jefferies may sell the Shares by any method permitted by law deemed to be an �at the market offff erff ing�
as defined in Rule 415(a)(4) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, including block transactions, sales made
directly on the NYSE American or sales made into any other existing trading market of the Company�s common
stock.

Through the date of this report, there have been 263,725 shares sold under this Agreement, at an average price per
share of $13.65 and generating net proceeds of approximately $3,491,000.

Intellectual Property

We have no patents, trademarks or licenses that are considered to be significant to our business or operations.
Rather, we believe that our technological position depends primarily on the technical competence and creative
ability of our engineering and technical staff in areas of product design and manufacturing processes, including our
staff�ff s ability to customize products to meet difficult specifications, as well as proprietary know-how and
information.

Employees

As of December 31, 2019, we employed 353 people, including 183 full-time, and 10 part-time employees, along
with 160 contractors. Of this total, the Company has 173 full-time, 9 part-time, and three contract employees within
the U.S., with 139 located in Orlando, Florida, 41 in Yankton, South Dakota, and five within its subsidiary PTF in
Wakefield, Massachusetts. The Company has two full-time and one part-time employee in Hong Kong, and eight
full-time employees and 157 contractors in Noida, India. None of the Company's employees are represented by a
labor union and the Company considers its relationships with employees to be good.
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As an engineered products and solutions company, a significant number of our workforce consists of degreed
engineers offering their expertise to product design and process development.

Environmental

Our manufacturing operations, products, and/dd or product packaging are subject to environmental laws and regulations
governing air emissions, wastewater discharges, and the handling, disposal and remediation of hazardous
substances, wastes and other chemicals. In addition, more stringent environmental regulations may be enacted in the
future, both within the United States and internationally, and we cannot presently determine the modifications, if
any, in our operations that any future regulations might require, or the cost of compliance that would be associated
with these regulations.

To date, capital expenditures, earnings and competitive position of the Company have not been materially affected
by compliance with current federal, state, and local laws and regulations (domestic and foreign) relating to the
protection of the environment. However, we cannot predict the effect of future laws and regulations.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Investing in our securities involves risks. Before making an investment decision, you should carefully consider the
risks described below. Any of these risks could result in a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations, or prospects, and could cause the trading price of our securities to decline,
resulting in a loss of all or part of your investment. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only
ones we face, but represent those risks and uncertainties that we believe are material to our business, operating
results, prospects and financial condition. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we
currently deem immaterial may alsoll harm our business.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

We are dependent on a single line of business.

Prior to our September 2016 acquisition of PTF, we were engaged only in the design, manufacture and marketing of
standard and custom-engineered electronic components that are used primarily to control the frequency or timing of
signals in electronic circuits. Although our acquisition of PTF added an additional product line of electronic
instruments that includes highly engineered products for the generation of time and frequency references for
synchronization and control, until we see significant growth from the PTF electronic instruments product line or
develop or acquire additional product lines, we will remain dependent on our electronic components line of
business. Virtually all of our 2019 and 2018 revenues came from sales of electronic components, which consist of
packaged quartz crystals, oscillator modules, electronic filters and integrated modules. We expect that this product
line will continue to account for substantially all of our revenues in 2020.

Given our reliance on this single line of business, any decline in demand for this product line or failure to achieve
continued market acceptance of existing and new versions of this product line may harm our business and our
financial condition. Additionally, unfavorable market conditions affecting this line of business would likely have a
disproportionate impact on us in comparison with certain competitors, who have more diversified operations and
multiple lines of business. Should this line of business fail to generate sufficient sales to support ongoing operations,
there can be no assurance that we will be able to develop alternate business lines.

Our operating results vary significantly from period to period.

We experience fluctuations in our operating results. Some of the principal factors that contribute to these
fluctuations include: changes in demand for our products; our effectiveness in managing manufacturing processes,
costs and inventory; our effectiveness in engineering and qualifying new product designs with our OEM customers
and in managing the risks associated with offering those new products into production; changes in the cost and
availability of raw materials, which often occur in the electronics manufacturing industry and which affect our
margins and our ability to meet delivery schedules; macroeconomic and served industry conditions; and events that
may affect our production capabilities, such as labor conditions and political instability. In addition, due to the
prevailing economic climate and competitive differences between the various market segments which we serve, the
mix of sales between our communications, networking, aerospace, defense, industrial and instrumentation market
segments may affect our operating results from period to period.
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For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, we had net income of apa proximately $7,016,000 and $1,405,000,
respectively. Our revenues are derived primarily from MtronPTI, whose future rate of growth and profitability are
highly dependent on the development and growth of demand for our products in the communications, networking,
aerospace, defense, instrumentation and industrial markets, which are cyclical. We cannot be certain whether we
will generate sufficient revenues or sufficiently manage expenses to sustain profitability.

We have a large customer that accounts for a significant portion of our revenues, and the loss of this customer,
or decrease in its demand for our products, could have a material adverse effect on our results.

In 2019, our largest customer, an electronics contract manufacturing company, accounted for $5,522,000, or 17.3%,
of the Company's total revenues, compared to $4,436,000, or 17.8%, in 2018. The Company�s second largest
customer, a defense contract manufacturer, accounted for $3,187,000, or 10.0%, of the Company's total revenues,
compared to $1,617,000, or 7.2%, in 2018. The loss of either of these customers, or a decrease in their demand for
our products, could have a material adverse effect on our results.

A relatively small number of customers account for a significant portion of our accounts receivable, and the
insolvency of any of these customers could have a matett rial adverse impact on our liquidity.

As of December 31, 2019, four of our largest customers accounted for approximately $1,841,000, or 40%, of
accounts receivable. As of December 31, 2018, four of our largest customers accounted for approximately
$1,043,000, or 30%, of accounts receivable. The insolvency of any of these customers could have a material adverse
impact on our liquidity.

Our order backlog may not be indicative of futureff revenues.

Our order backlog is comprised of orders that are subject to specific production release, orders under written
contracts, oral and written orders from customers with which we have had long-standing relationships and written
purchase orders from sales representatives. Our customers may order products from multiple sources to ensure
timely delivery when backlog is particularly long and may cancel or defer orders without significant penalty. They
also may cancel orders when business is weak and inventories are excessive. As a result, we cannot provide
assurances as to the portion of backlog orders to be filled in a given year, and our order backlog as of any particular
date may not be representative of actual revenues for any subsequent period.

We are a holding company, and therefore are dependent upon the operations of our subsidiaries to meet our
obligations.

We are a holding company that transacts business through our operating subsidiaries. Our primary assets are cash
and cash equivalents, marketable securities, the shares of our operating subsidiaries and intercompany loans. Should
our cash and cash equivalents be depleted, our ability to meet our operating requirements and to make other
payments will depend on the surplus and earnings of our subsidiaries and their ability to pay dividends or to advance
or repay funds.

Our future rate of growth and profitability are highly dependent on the development and growth of the
communications, networking, aerospace, defense, instrumentation and industrial markets, which are cyclical.

In 2019 and 2018, the majority of our revenues were derived from sales to manufacturers of equipment for the
defense, aerospace, instrumentation and industrial markets for frequency and spectrum control devices, including
indirect sales through distributors and contract manufacturers. During 2020, we expect a significant portion of our
revenues to continue to be derived from sales to these manufacturers. Often OEMs and other service providers
within these markets have experienced periods of capacity shortage and periods of excess capacity, as well as
periods of either high or low demand for their products. In periods of excess capacity or low demand, purchases of
capital equipment may be curtailed, including equipment that incorporates our products. A reduction in demand for
the manufacture and purchase of equipment for these markets, whether due to cyclical, macroeconomic or other
factors, or due to our reduced ability to compete based on cost or technical factors, could substantially reduce our net
sales and operating results and adversely affect our financial condition. Moreover, if these markets fail to grow as
expected, we may be unable to maintain or grow our revenues. The multiple variables which affect the
communications, networking, aerospace, defense, instrumentation and industrial markets for our products, as well as
the number of parties involved in the supply chain and manufacturing process, can impact inventory levels and lead
to supply chain inefficiencies. As a result of these complexities, we have limited visibility to forecast revenue
projections accurately for the near and medium-term timeframes.



8

The market share of our customers in the communications, networking, aerospace, defense, instrumentation and
industrial markets may change over time, reducing the potential value of our relationships with our existing
customer base.

We have developed long-term relationships with our existing customers, including pricing contracts, custom designs
and approved vendor status. If these customers lose market share to other equipment manufacturers in the
communications, networking, aerospace, defense, instrumentation and industrial markets with whom we do not have
similar relationships, our ability to maintain revenue, margin or operating performance may be adversely affected.

We may make acquisitions that are not successful, or we may fail to integrate acquired businesses into our
operations properly.

We intend to continue exploring opportunities to buy other businesses or technologies that could complement,
enhance, or expand our current business or product lines, or that might otherwise offer us growth opportunities. We
may have difficulty finding such opportunities or, if such opportunities are identified, we may not be able to
complete such transactions for reasons including a failure to secure necessary financing.

Any transactions that we are ablea to identify and complete may involve a number of risks, including:
‒ The diversion of our management's attention from the management of our existing business to the integration

of the operations and personnel of the acquired or combined business or joint venture;
‒ Material business risks not identified in due diligence;
‒ Possible adverse effects on our operating results during the integration process;
‒ Substantial acquisition-related expenses, which would reduce our net income, if any, in future years;
‒ The loss of key employees and customers as a result of changes in management; and
‒ Our possible inability to achieve the intended objectives of the transaction.

In addition, we may not be able to integrate, operate, maintain or manage, successfully or profitably, our newly
acquired operations or employees. We may not be able to maintain uniform standards, controls, policies and
procedures, and this may lead to operational inefficiencies.

Any of these difficulties could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows.

If we are unable to introduce innovative products, demand for our products may decrease.

Our future operating results are dependent on our ability to develop, introduce and market innovative products
continually, to modify existing products, to respond to technological change and to customize some of our products
to meet customer requirements. There are numerous risks inherent in this process, including the risks that we will be
unable to anticipate the direction of technological change or that we will be unable to develop and market new
products and applications in a timely or cost-effective manner to satisfy customer demand.

Our markets are highly competitive, and we may lose business to larger and better-financed competitors.m

Our markets are highly competitive worldwide, with low transportation costs and few import barriers. We compete
principally on the basis of product quality and reliability, availability, customer service, technological innovation,
timely delivery and price. Within the industries in which we compete, competition has become increasingly
concentrated and global in recent years.

Many of our major competitors, some of which are larger than us, and potential competitors have substantially
greater financial resources and more extensive engineering, manufacturing, marketing and customer support
capabilities. If we are unable to successfully compete against current and future competitors, our operating results
will be adversely affecff ted.

Our success depends on our ability to retain key management and technical personnel and attracting, retaining,
and training new technical personnel.

Our future growth and success will depend in large part upon our ability to recruit highly-skilled technical
personnel, including engineers, and to retain our existing management and technical personnel. The labor markets in
which we operate are highly competitive and some of our operations are not located in highly populated areas. As a
result, we may not be able to recruit and retain key personnel. Our failure to hire, retain or adequately train key
personnel could have a negative impact on our performance.
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We purchase certain key components and raw materials from single or limited sources and could lose sales if
these sources fail to fulfill our needs for any reason, including the inability to obtain these key components or
raw materials due to the recent novel coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak.

If single-source components or key raw materials were to become unavailable on satisfactory terms, and we could
not obtain comparable replacement components or raw materials from other sources in a timely manner, our
business, results of operations and financial condition could be harmed. On occasion, one or more of the
components used in our products have become unavailable, resulting in unanticipated redesign and related delays in
shipments. Recently, the coronavirus outbreak has caused a global pandemic that has disrupted supply chains and
the ability to obtain components and raw materials around the world for all companies, including us. We cannot give
assurance that we will be able to obtain the necessary components and raw materials necessary to conduct our
business during the coronavirus pandemic, and we also cannot give assurance that similar delays will not occur in
the future. In addition, our suppliers may be impacted by compliance with environmental regulations including
RoHS and Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment ("WEEE"), which could disrupt the supply of components or
raw materials or cause additional costs for us to implement new components or raw materials into our manufacturing
processes.

As a supplier to U.S. Government defense contractors, we are subject to a number of procurement regulations
and other requirements and could be adversely affected by changes in regulations or any negative findings from
a U.S. Government audit or investigation.

A number of our customers are U.S. Government contractors. As one of their suppliers, we must comply with
significant procurement regulations and other requirements. We also maintain registration under the International
Traffic in Arms Regulations for all of our production facilities. One of those production facilities must comply with
additional requirements and regulations for its production processes and for selected personnel in order to maintain
the security of classified information. These requirements, although customary within these markets, increase our
performance and compliance costs. If any of these various requirements change, our costs of complying with them
could increase and reduce our operating margins.

We operate in a highly regulated environment and are routinely audited and reviewed by the U.S. Government and
its agencies such as the Defense Contract Audit Agency and Defense Contract Management Agency. These agencies
review our performance under our contracts, our cost structure and our compliance with applicable laws,
regulations, and standards, as well as the adequacy of, and our compliance with, our internal control systems and
policies. Systems that are subject to review include our purchasing systems, billing systems, property management
and control systems, cost estimating systems, compensation systems and management information systems.

Any costs found to be improperly allocated to a specific contract will not be reimbursed or must be refunded if
already reimbursed. If an audit uncovers improper or illegal activities, we may be subject to civil and criminal
penalties and administrative sanctions, which may include termination of contracts, forfeiture of profits, suspension
of payments, fines and suspension, or prohibition from doing business as a supplier to contractors who sell products
and services to the U.S. Government. In addition, our reputation could be adversely affected if allegations of
impropriety were made against us.

From time to time, we may also be subject to U.S. Government investigations relating to our or our customers'
operations and products, and are expected to perform in compliance with a vast array of federal laws, including the
Truth in Negotiations Act, the False Claims Act, the International Traffic in Arms Regulations promulgated under
the Arms Export Control Act, and the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. We or our customers may be subject to
reductions of the value of contracts, contract modifications or termination, and the assessment of penalties and fines,
which could negatively impact our results of operations and financial condition, or result in a diminution in revenue
from our customers, if we or our customers are found to have violated the law or are indicted or convicted for
violations of federal laws related to government security regulations, employment practices or protection of the
environment, or are found not to have acted responsibly as defined by the law. Such convictions could also result in
suspension or debarment from serving as a supplier to government contractors for some period of time. Such
convictions or actions could have a material adverse effect on us and our operating results. The costs of cooperating
or complying with such audits or investigations may also adversely impact our financial results.

Our operating subsidiaries do not have available lines of credit to fund their businesses.

Our operating subsidiaries do not have access to any bank credit facilities and rely on the holding company for
financial support in the event their operations require cash to operate or expand their businesses.
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Our products are complex and may contain errors or design flaws, which could be costly to correct.tt

When we release new products, or new versions of existing products, they may contain undetected or unresolved
errors or defects. The vast majority of our products are custom-designed for requirements of specific OEM systems.
The expected business life of these products ranges from less than one year to more than 10 years depending on the
application. Some of the customizations are modest changes to existing product designs while others are major
product redesigns or new product platforms.

Despite testing, errors or defects may be found in new products or upgrades after the commencement of commercial
shipments. Undetected errors and design flaws have occurred in the past and could occur in the future. These errors
could result in delays, loss of market acceptance and sales, diversion of development resources, damage to the
Company's reputation, product liability claims and legal action by its customers and third parties, failure to attract
new customers and increased service costs.

Communications and network infrastructure equipment manufacturers increasingly rely upon contract
manufacturers, thereby diminishing our ability to sellll our products directly to those equipment manufacturers.

There is a continuing trend among communications and network infrastructure equipment manufacturers to
outsource the manufacturing of their equipment or components. As a result, our ability to persuade these OEMs to
utilize our products in customer designs could be reduced and, in the absence of a manufacturer's specification of
our products, the prices that we can charge for them may be subject to greater competition.

Future changes in our environmental liability and compliance obligations may increase costs and decrease
profitability.

Our present and past manufacturing operations, products, and/or product packaging are subject to environmental
laws and regulations governing air emissions, wastewater discharges, and the handling, disposal and remediation of
hazardous substances, wastes and other chemicals. In addition, more stringent environmental regulations may be
enacted in the future, and we cannot presently determine the modifications, if any, in our operations that any future
regulations might require, or the cost of compliance that would be associated with these regulations.

Environmental laws and regulations may cause us to change our manufacturing processes, redesign some of our
products, and change components to eliminate some substances in our products in order to be able to continue to
offer them for sale.

We have significant international operations and sales to customers outside of the United States that subject us to
certain business, economic and political risks.

We have office and manufacturing space in Noida, India, and a sales office in Hong Kong. Additionally, foreign
revenues for 2019 and 2018 (primarily to Malaysia) accounted for 26.6% and 24.9% of our 2019 and 2018
consolidated revenues, respectively. We anticipate that sales to customers located outside of the United States will
continue to be a significant part of our revenues for the foreseeable future. Our international operations and sales to
customers outside of the United States subject our operating results and financial condition to certain business,
economic, political, health, regulatory and other risks, including but not limited to:
‒ Political and economic instabilitya in countries in which our products are manufactured and sold;
‒ Expropriation or the imposition of government controls;
‒ Responsibility to comply with anti-bribery laws such as the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and similar

anti-bribery laws in other jurisdictions;
‒ Sanctions or restrictions on trade imposed by the United States government;
‒ Export license requirements;
‒ Trade restrictions;
‒ Currency controls or fluctuations in exchange rates;
‒ High levels of inflation or deflation;
‒ Difficulty in staffing and managing non-U.S. operations
‒ Greater difficulty in collecting accounts receivable and longer payment cycles;
‒ Changes in labor conditions and difficulties in staffing and managing international operations; and
‒ The impact of the current coronavirus outbreak; and
‒ Limitations on insurance coverage against geopolitical risks, natural disasters and business operations.

Additionally, to date, very few of our international revenue and cost obligations have been denominated in foreign
currencies. As a result, changes in the value of the United States dollar relative to foreign currencies may affect our
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competitiveness in foreign markets. We do not currently engage in foreign currency hedging activities, but may do
so in the future to the extent that we incur a significant amount of foreign-currency denominated liabilities.

Our business and operations may be adversely affected by the recent coronavirus outbreak or other similar
outbreaks.

We derive a significant portion of our consolidated revenues from products that are manufactured and form part of
our supply chain within our international operations. We have office and manufacturing space in Noida, India, and a
sales office in Hong Kong. As a result of the recent coronavirus outbreak, first identified in Wuhan, Hubei Province,
China, and increasingly in other locations, or other adverse public health developments, our international operations,
and those of our customers and suppliers, may experience delays or disruptions, such as difficulty obtaining raw
materials, logistics and supply-chain problems, and temporary suspensions of operations. In addition, our financial
condition and results of operations may be adversely affected by the coronavirus outbreak.

In addition, the timeline and potential magnitude of the coronavirus outbreak is currently unknown. This disease has
already resulted in a widespread health crisis that has adversely affected the economies and financial markets of
many countries, resulting in an economic downturn that could affect demand for our products and our operating
results. The continuation or amplification of this disease over a longer period of time would have increasing adverse
effects on the global economy, as well as our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We rely on information technology systems to conduct our business, and disruption, failure or security breaches
of these systems could adversely affect our business and results of operations.

We rely on information technology ("IT") systems in order to achieve our business objectives. We also rely upon
industry accepted security measures and technology to securely maintain confidential information maintained on our
IT systems. However, our portfolio of hardware and software products, solutions and services and our enterprise IT
systems may be vulnerable to damage or disruption caused by circumstances beyond our control such as
catastrophic events, power outages, natural disasters, computer system or network failures, computer viruses, cyber-
attacks or other malicious software programs. The failure or disruption of our IT systems to perform as anticipated
for any reason could disrupt our business and result in decreased performance, significant remediation costs,
transaction errors, loss of data, processing inefficiencies, downtime, litigation and the loss of suppliers or
customers. A significant disruption or failure could have a material adverse effect on our business operations,
financial performance and financial condition.

Cybersecurity risks and cyber incidents may adversely affect our business by causing a disruption to our
operations, a compromise or corruption of our confidential information,ff and/or damage to our business
relationships, all of which could negatively impact our financial results.

A cyber incident is considered to be any adverse event that threatens the confidentiality, integrity or availability of
our information resources. These incidents may be an intentional attack or an unintentional event and could involve
gaining unauthorized access to our information systems for purposes of misappropriating assets, stealing
confidential information, corrupting data or causing operational disruption. The result of these incidents may include
disrupted operations, misstated or unreliable financial data, liability for stolen assets or information, increased
cybersecurity protection and insurance costs, litigation and damage to our tenant and investor relationships. As our
reliance on technology increases, so will the risks posed to our information systems, both internal and those we
outsource. There is no guarantee that any processes, procedures and internal controls we have implemented or will
implement will prevent cyber intrusions, which could have a negative impact on our financial results, operations,
business relationships or confidential information.

In connection with the preparation of our annual financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2019, we identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting. Any failure to maintain
effective internal control over financial reportingii could harm us.

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting.
Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles. In connection with our audit of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019, we
identified a material weakness in our internal controls over financial reporting regarding our ineffective controls
over a significant transaction in connection with the investment in an unconsolidated subsidiary. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such that there
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is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of annual or interim financial statements will not be
prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. This control deficiency resulted in misstatements relating to
the treatment of our investment in an unconsolidated subsidiary, which was corrected prior to the issuance of our
financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019 included in this annual report on Form 10-K.
As this deficiency created a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement would not be prevented or detected
in a timely basis, management concluded that the control deficiency represented a material weakness and
accordingly our internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of December 31, 2019.

We are still considering the full extent of the procedures to implement in order to remediate the material weakness
described above; however, the current remediation plan includes implementing controls over calculations and
conclusions associated with non-routine transactions at a more precise level of operation. We cannot assure you that
any of our remedial measures will be effective in resolving this material weakness or that we will not suffer from
other material weaknesses in the future.

If our management is unable to conclude that we have effective internal control over financial reporting, or to certify
the effectiveness of such controls, or if additional material weaknesses in our internal controls are identified in the
future, we could be subject to regulatory scrutiny and a loss of public confidence, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business and our stock price. In addition, if we do not maintain adequate financial and
management personnel, processes and controls, we may not be able to manage our business effectively or accurately
report our financial performance on a timely basis, which could cause a decline in our common stock price and
adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Risks Related to Our Investments

We have made a significant investment in a subsidiary that is the sponsor of a blank check company commonly
referred to as a special purpose acquisition company (�SPAC� �),� and will suffer the loss of all of our investment if
the SPAC does not complete an acquisition within 2 years.

In November 2019, we invested $3.35 million into a subsidiary that is obligated as the sponsor of LGL Systems
Acquisition Corp (NYSE: DFNS), a blank check company. Prior to a business combination, the Sponsor holds
100% of the B shares outstanding of DFNS. The B shares equal 20% of the outstanding common stock of DFNS.
Upon the successful completion of an acquisition the proforma ownership of the new company will vary depending
on the business combination terms.

The Company is expected to own approximately a 43.57% interest in the sponsor through its direct investment.
Assuming the terms of the business combination are identical in capital structure as that of DFNS, the Company
anticipates its economic interest will include approximately 8.7% of the SPAC�s pro-forma equity immediately
following a successful business combination. There can be no assurances that this scenario and the resulting
ownership will manifest, as changes may be made depending upon business combination terms.

There is no assurance that the SPAC will be successful in completing a business combination or that any business
combination will be successful. The Company can lose its entire investment in the SPAC if a business combination
is not completed within 24 months or if the business combination is not successful, which may adversely impact our
stockholder value.
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Risks Related to Our Securities

The price of our common stock has fluctuated considerably and is likely to remain volatile, in part due to the
limited marketrr for our common stock.

From January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019, the high and low closing sales prices for our common stock were
$15.86 and $6.00, respectively, and the average daily trading volume in our common stock during that time period
was approximately 16,400 shares per day. There is a limited public market for our common stock, and we cannot
provide assurances that a more active trading market will develop or be sustained. As a result of limited trading
volume in our common stock, the purchase or sale of a relatively small number of shares could result in significant
price fluctuations and it may be difficult for holders to sell their shares without depressing the market price for our
common stock.

Additionally, the market prices of our common stock may continue to fluctuate significantly in response to a number
of factors, some of which are beyond our control, including the following:
‒ General economic conditions affecting the availability of long-term or short-term credit facilities, the

purchasing and payment patterns of our customers, or the requirements imposed by our suppliers;
‒ Economic conditions in our industry and in the industries of our customers and suppliers;
‒ Changes in financial estimates or investment recommendations by securities analysts relating to our common

stock;
‒ Market reaction to our reported financial results;
‒ Loss of a major customer;
‒ Announcements by us or our competitors of significant contracts, acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint

ventures or capital commitments; and
‒ Changes in key personnel.

Our officers, directors and 10% stockholders have significant voting power and may vote their shares in a
manner that is not in the best interest of other stockholders.

Our officers, directors and 10% or greater stockholders control approximately 38.3% of the voting power
represented by our outstanding shares of common stock as of March 27, 2020. If these stockholders act together,
they may be able to exert significant control over our management and affairs requiring stockholder approval,
including approval of significant corporate transactions. This concentration of ownership may have the effect of
delaying or preventing a change in control and might adversely affect the market price of our common stock. This
concentration of ownership may not be in the best interests of all of our stockholders.

Provisions in our corporate charter documents and under Delaware law could make an acquisition of the
Company, which may be beneficial to our stockholders, more difficult.tt

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation and by-laws, as well as provisions of the General Corporation Law of
the State of Delaware ("DGCL"), may discourage, delay or prevent a merger, acquisition or other change in control
of the Company, even if such a change in control would be beneficial to our stockholders. These provisions include
prohibiting our stockholders from fixing the number of directors, and establishing advance notice requirements for
stockholder proposals that can be acted on at stockholder meetings and nominations to our board of directors (the
"Board").

Additionally, Section 203 of the DGCL prohibits a person who owns in excess of 15% of our outstanding voting
stock from merging or combining with us for a period of three years after the date of the transaction in which the
person acquired in excess of 15% of our outstanding voting stock, unless the merger or combination is approved in a
prescribed manner. We have not opted out of the restrictions under Section 203, as permitted under DGCL.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Item 2. Properties.

The Company's principal executive offices are located in Orlando, Florida within an MtronPTI operating facility.
MtronPTI's operations are located in Orlando, Florida; Yankton, South Dakota; and Noida, India. PTF's operations
are located in Wakefield, Massachusetts. We also have sales offices in Sacramento, California; Austin, Texas; and
Hong Kong.
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MtronPTI owns a facility in Orlando, Florida, containing approximately 71,000 square feet on approximately five
acres of land. MtronPTI owns a facility in Yankton, South Dakota, containing approximately 32,000 square feet on
approximately 11 acres of land. MtronPTI also leases approximately 13,000 square feet of office and manufacturing
space in Noida, India. PTF leases approximately 3,600 square feet of office and manufacturing space in Wakefield,
Massachusetts. We also lease approximately 700 square feet of office space in Hong Kong and approximately 400
square feet of office space in Sacramento, California. It is our opinion that the facilities referred to above are in good
operating condition, suitable, and adequate for present uses.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities.

Market for Common Equity

Our common stock is traded on the NYSE American, under the symbol "LGL." Based upon information furnished
by our transfer agent, at March 27, 2020, we had 421 holders of record of our common stock. The following table
sets forth the high and low sales prices for our common stock for the periods indicated as reported by the NYSE
American:

Fiscal Year 2019 High Low
Fourth Quarter .................................................................................................. $ 15.86 $ 9.92
Third Quarter .................................................................................................... 10.90 7.70
Second Quarter ................................................................................................. 9.65 6.62
First Quarter...................................................................................................... 7.54 6.00

Fiscal Year 2018 High Low
Fourth Quarter .................................................................................................. $ 7.25 $ 5.76
Third Quarter .................................................................................................... 8.00 5.11
Second Quarter ................................................................................................. 5.60 5.10
First Quarter...................................................................................................... 5.86 5.24

On August 29, 2011, the Board authorized the Company to repurchase up to 100,000 shares of its common stock in
accordance with applicable securities laws. This authorization increased the total number of shares authorized and
available forff repurchase under the Company's existing share repurchase program to 540,000 shares, at such times,
amounts and prices as the Company shall deem appropriate. There is no expiration date for this program. As of
December 31, 2019, the Company has repurchased a total of 81,584 shares of common stock under this program at a
cost of $580,000, which shares are currently held in treasury; however, no shares were repurchased by the Company
during the year ended December 31, 2019.

Dividend Policy

Our Board has adhered to a practice of not paying cash dividends. This policy takes into account our long-term
growth objectives, including our anticipated investments for organic growth, potential technology acquisitions or
other strategic ventures, and stockholders' desire for capital appreciation of their holdings. No cash dividends have
been paid to our stockholders since January 30, 1989, and none are expected to be paid for the foreseeable future.



16

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

You should read the following selected consolidated financial data together with ''Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations'' and our consolidated financial statements and the
related notes included elsewhere in thisii report.

The selected consolidated statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the
selected consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, are derived from our audited financial
statements included elsewhere in this report. The selected consolidated statement of operations data for the years
ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, and the selected consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31,
2017, 2016 and 2015, are derived from our audited financial statements not included in this report. These
consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. Our historical results may not be indicative of the operating results to be expected in any future period.

Year ended December 31,
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Revenues .................................................................. $ 31,897 $ 24,870 $ 22,402 $ 20,891 $ 20,713
Operating income (loss) (a)...................................... 3,439 1,430 276 (161) (788)
Income (loss) before income taxes........................... 3,909 1,570 219 (17) (703)
(Benefit) provision for income taxes........................ (3,107) 165 102 (165) 8
Net income (loss) ..................................................... $ 7,016 $ 1,405 $ 117 $ 148 $ (711)
Weighted average number of shares used in the
basic earnings per share calculation ................... 4,883,923 4,748,609 2,929,641 2,665,043 2,640,803

Weighted average number of shares used in the
diluted earnings per share calculation ................ 4,977,595 4,875,031 3,035,104 2,665,730 2,640,803

Per share:
Basic net income (loss) per share .......................... $ 1.44 $ 0.30 $ 0.04 $ 0.06 $ (0.27)
Diluted net income (loss) per share ....................... $ 1.41 $ 0.29 $ 0.04 $ 0.06 $ (0.27)

December 31,
(in thousands)

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Cash and cash equivalents......................................... $ 12,453 $ 15,508 $ 13,250 $ 2,778 $ 5,553
Working capital......................................................... $ 24,586 $ 24,633 $ 21,923 $ 10,135 $ 9,876
Total assets ................................................................ $ 39,217 $ 30,075 $ 27,555 $ 16,646 $ 15,803
Stockholders' equity (b) ............................................ $ 34,893 $ 27,323 $ 24,928 $ 13,891 $ 13,727

(a) Operating income (loss) is revenues less operating expenses, which excludes investment income, interest
expense, gain on sale of land and equipment, insurance proceeds, other income and taxes and includes
impairment charges.

(b) No cash dividends have been declared during the periods presented.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

You should read the following discussion and analysis together with our audited consolidated financial statementstt
and the accompanying notes. This discussion contains forward-looking statements, including statements regarding
our expected financial position, business and financing plans. These statements involve risks and uncertainties. Our
actual results could differ materially from the results described in or implied by these forward-looking statements as
a result of various factors, including those discussed below and elsewhere in this Report, particularly under the
headings "Caution Concerning Forward-Looking Statements" and "Risk Factors."

Results of Operations

Factors Which May Influence Results of Operations

We are not aware of any material trends or uncertainties, other than national economic conditions affecting our
industry generally, that may reasonably be expected to have a material impact, favorable or unfavorable, on our
revenues or income other than those listed in Part I, Item 1A, Risk Factors, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
However, due to the recent outbreak of the coronavirus in the U.S. and globally, our business and operations may be
impacted. The impact of the coronavirus on our future results could be significant and will largely depend on future
developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted, including new information which may emerge
concerning the severity of the coronavirus, the success of actions taken to contain or treat the coronavirus, and
reactions by consumers, companies, governmental entities and capital markets.

2019 Compared to 2018

Consolidated Revenues, Gross Margin and Backlog

Total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2019 were $31,897,000, an increase of $7,027,000, or 28.3% from
revenues of $24,870,000 in 2018. The increase was primarily due to an increase in filter sales of $4,230,000.

Consolidated gross margin, which is consolidated revenues less manufacturing cost of sales, as a percentage of
revenues increased to 39.2% from 38.8% for the year ended December 31, 2019, compared to the prior year. The
increase reflects our strategy to move away from the low margin commodities business and focus on achieving
revenue growth through the development of more complex, higher margin products, particularly in the aerospace
and defense product markets.

As of December 31, 2019, our order backlog was $21,857,000, an increase of 24.9% compared to a backlog of
$17,506,000 as of December 31, 2018. The significant increase in backlog is primarily due to receiving orders much
earlier than expected. The backlog of unfilled orders includes amounts based on signed contracts as well as agreed
letters of intent, which we have determined are firm orders likely to be fulfilled in the next 12 months.

Order backlog is adjusted quarterly to reflect project cancellations, deferrals, revised project scope and cost, and
sales of subsidiaries, if any. We expect to fill our entire order backlog as of December 31, 2019 in 2020, but cannot
provide assurances as to what portion of the order backlog will be fulfilled in a given year.

Operating Income

Operating income of $3,439,000 for the year ended December 31, 2019, was an improvement of $2,009,000 from
the year ended December 31, 2018 operating income of $1,430,000. The improvement was primarily due to the
$2,857,000 increase in gross margins as a result of increased sales, offset partially by increased operating expenses
of ($848,000). Engineering, selling and administrative expenses were 28.4% of revenue for the year ended
December 31, 2019, compared to 33.1% of revenue for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Interest Income, Net

Interest income, net, showed income of $2,000 for the years ended December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018.
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Other Income, Net

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, other income, net was $484,000 and $138,000, respectively, an
increase of $346,000 in the current year. This increase resulted directly from the investment income from our
investment portfolio.

Income Tax Provision

We must make certain estimates and judgments in determining income tax expense for financial statement purposes.
These estimates and judgments occur in the calculation of tax credits, tax benefits and deductions and in the
calculation of certain tax assets and liabilities, which arise from differences in the timing of recognition of revenue
and expense for tax and financial statement purposes. Significant changes to these estimates may result in an
increase or decrease to the tax provision in a subsequent period.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Standards
Codification 740, Income Taxes (�ASC 740�), we consider whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all
of our deferred tax assets will or will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent
upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become
realizable. Based upon the weighting of positive and negative evidence, the Company has determined the results of
future operations will generate sufficient taxable income that it is more likely than not that deferred tax assets of
$3,307,000 at December 31, 2019 will be utilized in the foreseeable future. At December 31, 2019, the Company�s
remaining valuation allowance was $388,000, consisting primarily of tax credits expiring between 2020 and 2024.
Should a change in circumstances lead to a change in judgment about the ability to realize deferred tax assets in
future years, the Company will adjust related valuation allowances in the period that the change in circumstances
occurs, along with a corresponding increase or charge to income.

We recorded an income tax (benefit) provision for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 of ($3,107,000)
and $165,000, respectively. The change in our income tax (benefit) provision from the prior year was primarily due
to the reversal of ($3,344,000) from the valuation allowance in the third quarter of 2019.

Net Income

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2019 was $7,016,000 compared with income of $1,405,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2018. Basic net income per share for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 was
$1.44 and $0.30, respectively. Diluted net income per share for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 was
$1.41 and $0.29, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, cash and cash equivalents were $12,453,000 and $15,508,000, respectively.

Cash provided by operating activities was $2,666,000 and $1,656,000 for the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018, respectively. The $1,010,000 increase was primarily due to the improvement in net income of $5,611,000,
offset by the change in deferred tax assets of ($3,226,000), changes in operating assets and liabilities of
($1,210,000), and the increased gain on marketable securities of $(234,000).

Cash used in investing activities for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 was ($6,163,000) and ($324,000),
respectively. In 2019, we purchased marketable securities totaling $(5,050,000), and sold marketable securities
totaling $3,400,000 and invested $(3,350,000) in an unconsolidated subsidiary. The capital expenditures in 2019
related primarily to improvements to the facilities of $622,000 along with the purchase of production machinery of
$330,000.

For the year ended December 31, 2019, financing activity related to proceeds from stock options exercised of
$442,000. For the year ended December 31, 2018, financing activity related to the $927,000 received as a result of
warrant exercises, along with $27,000 received from exercises of stock options, and payments of ($28,000) related
to issuance costs for the rights offering in 2017.

As of December 31, 2019, our consolidated working capital was $24,586,000, compared to $24,633,000 as of
December 31, 2018. As of December 31, 2019, we had current assets of $28,910,000, current liabilities of
$4,324,000 and a ratio of current assets to current liabilities of 6.69 to 1.00. As of December 31, 2018, we had
current assets of $27,385,000, current liabilities of $2,752,000 and a ratio of current assets to current liabilities of
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9.95 to 1.00. Management continues to focus on efficiently managing working capital requirements to match
operating activity levels, and will seek to deploy the Company�s working capital where it will generate the greatest
returns.

We believe that existing cash and cash equivalents and cash generated from operations will be sufficient to meet our
ongoing working capital and capital expenditure requirements for the next 12 months from the date of this filing.
However, we are continuing to monitor the outbreak of the coronavirus and its impact on our customers and
suppliers, as well as our industry as a whole. The magnitude and duration of the pandemic and its impact on our
operations and liquidity is uncertain as of the filing date of our report as this continues to evolve globally. However,
if the outbreak continues on its current trajectory, such impacts could grow and become material. To the extent that
our customers and suppliers continue to be impacted by the coronavirus outbreak, or by the other risks disclosed in
our report, this could materially disrupt our business operations.

Our Board has adhered to a practice of not paying cash dividends. This policy takes into account our long-term
growth objectives, including our anticipated investments for organic growth, potential technology acquisitions or
other strategic ventures, and stockholders' desire for capital appreciation of their holdings. No cash dividends have
been paid to the Company's stockholders since January 30, 1989, and none are expected to be paid for the
foreseeable future.

Critical Accountingii Policies

Our significant accounting policies are described in Note A. "Accounting and Reporting Policies" in the
accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company's discussion and analysis of its
financial condition and results of operations are based upon the Company's consolidated financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The
preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On
an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to the carrying value of inventories, the
likelihood of collecting outstanding accounts receivable, value of stock-based compensation, and the provision for
income taxes. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. In the past, actual results have not
been materially different from our estimates. However, results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Not applicable.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

See the financial statements included at the end of this report beginning on page 31.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed
in our reports under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms, and that such information is
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accumulated and communicated to us, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as
appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

As required by Rules 13a-15(b) and 15d-15(b) of the Exchange Act, an evaluation as of December 31, 2019 was
conducted under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our chief executive officer
and chief financial officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act). Based on this evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief
financial officer concluded that our controls over significant transactions, as of December 31, 2019, were not
effective due to the material weakness noted below.

During 2019, the Company undertook a significant transaction in connection with its investment in an
unconsolidated subsidiary. Management initially concluded that the Sponsor should be consolidated, when it was
later determined that the Company did not have voting control over the Sponsor and should apply the equity method
instead. Furthermore, the Company wrongfully concluded that the SPAC was a Variable Interest Entity (�VIE�),
when it did not meet the criteria to be considered a VIE.

Despite the material weakness in internal control over financial reporting, based on the corrections made to the
results contained in these financial statements, our management has concluded that, notwithstanding the material
weakness described above, the financial statements fairly present in all material respects, our financial position,
results of operations and cash flows as of the dates, and for the periods presented, in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (�GAAP�).

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as
such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Internal control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilita y of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP. Because of its inherent limitations, internal
control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management is still considering potential remediation measures to be implemented before the next significant
transaction occurs. The remediation efforts, which are expected to be implemented during fiscal year 2020, will
include the design and implementation of controls and processes surrounding the identification, evaluation, and
approval of significant transactions.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and
principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2019, based on the framework in Internal Control� Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework). Based on that
evaluation, our management has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of
December 31, 2019.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Other than the material weakness described above that occurred during our fiscal year ended December 31, 2019,
there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter ended December 31,
2019, or in other factors that could significantly affect the controls, that materially affected, or are reasonably likely
to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

Directors

The following table sets forth information regarding our directors, including their business experience for the past
five years (and, in some instances, for prior years) and their specific experience, qualifications, attributes or skills
that led to the conclusion that they should serve as directors.

Name Age
Director
Since

Offices and Positions Held With the Company, Business Experience and Principal
Occupation for the Last Five Years, and Directorships in Public Corporations and

Investment Companies
Ivan Arteaga 51 2019 Chief Executive Officer, The LGL Group, Inc. (January 2020 to present);

Chartered Financial Analyst and Founding and Managing Member of
Arteaga Capital Management, LLC (May 2006 to present), a firm that
provides alternative investment management services to accredited or
qualified investors. Mr. Arteaga has previously served as a Portfolio
Manager of several funds for GAMCO Investors, Inc. Mr. Arteaga brings to
the board and management his extensive knowledge of capital markets
along with significant mergers and acquisitions experience.

Marc J. Gabelli 52 2004 Non-executive Chairman of the Board, The LGL Group, Inc. (December
2017 to present, and September 2004 to April 2016); Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, LGL Systems Acquisition Corp. (September 2019 to
present), and has served as a Director of LGL Systems Acquisition Corp.
since its inception in early 2019; Chairman of Gabelli Merger Plus Trust
since July 2017; Director of GAMCO Investors, Inc. from November 2014
to May 2016; Director and President of Associated Capital Group (October
2015 to May 2016); Managing Partner, Horizon Research (January 2013 to
present), an investment management and research services provider; Chief
Executive Officer, Gabelli Securities International Ltd. (1994 to present), a
global alternative asset management platform and merchant advisor;
President and Managing Partner, GGCP, Inc. (1999 to present), a private
corporation that makes investments for its own account; Managing
Member, Commonwealth Management Partners LLC (2008 to present);
and Director and Managing Partner, GAMA Funds Holdings GmbH (2009
to present). Mr. Gabelli brings to the Board his extensive knowledge of the
Company's business and industry due to his longstanding service on the
Board, as well as his financial expertise and leadership experience as an
executive of various investment firms.

Donald H. Hunter 63 2013 Principal, Donald Hunter LLC (April 2007 to present), a consulting practice
based in Wellesley, MA; Director of KushCo Holdings, Inc. (OTCQX:
KSHB), a packaging and supply company serving the regulated Cannabis
industry (February 2018 to present); Chief Operating Officer and Chief
Financial Officer for Harbor Global Company Limited (October 2000 to
December 2006), a public company that owned and operated international
investment management and natural resources subsidiaries; Chief
Operating Officer, Pioneer Global Investments, a Division of the Pioneer
Group, Inc. (August 1998 to October 2000), a company that provided
investment management services and owned several natural resources
investments; Manager of International Finance, the Pioneer Group, Inc.
(January 1991 to August 1998), with financial responsibility for
international strategic start-up companies. Mr. Hunter served as a director
of Juniper Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (February 2014 to March 2016), a
specialty pharmaceuticals company (NASDAQ: JNP), where he served as
Chairman of the Audit Committee; LICT Corporation (June 2014 to May
2016), an integrated provider of broadband and voice services (OTC PK:
LICT); and the Pioneer First Polish Trust Fund, where he served as Audit
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Committee Chairman for the first mutual fund in Poland. Mr. Hunter brings
to the Board financial, operating, corporate development, international and
mergers and acquisition experience.

Timothy Foufas 51 2007 Managing Partner, Plato Foufas & Co. LLC (2005 to present), a financial
services company; Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, LGL
Systems Acquisition Corp. (September 2019 to present), and previously
served as Chief Executive Officer of LGL Systems Acquisition Corp. from
inception to September 2019; President, Levalon Properties LLC (2007 to
2018), a real estate property management company; Senior Vice President,
Bayshore Management Co. LLC (2005 to 2006), a real estate property
management company; Director of Investments, Liam Ventures Inc. (2000
to 2005), a private equity investment firm; and Director, ICTC Group, Inc.
(2010 to 2013), a rural local exchange carrier headquartered in Nome, ND.
Mr. Foufasff brings to the Board his management skills and expertise in
financial, investment and real estate matters.

Manjit Kalha 45 2011 Managing Partner, Horizon Research (August 2012 to present), a firm that
provides investment management and research services; Chief Executive
Officer, Horizon AMC (June 2008 to present), a firm that provides
investment management and consulting services; Chief Executive Officer
and Director, Jeet Associates Private Limited (December 2006 to present),
a consulting firm based in New Delhi that provides business strategy,
finance, and taxation advisory services; and Co-founder and Chief
Operating Officer, Radiant Polymers Private Limited (2001 to 2006), a
manufacturing company of high quality specialty plastic components. Mr.
Kalha brings to the Board his experience in management and
manufacturing operations, and an extensive knowledge of global financial
markets.

Bel Lazar 58 2019 Chief Operations Officer and member of the Board of Directors at Efficient
Power Conversion (April, 2015 to present), a leading provider of gallium
nitride (GaN)-based power management technology. Acting Chief
Executive Officer of Freebird Semiconductor Corporation, a high-reliability
wide-gap power management technology company. President and CEO of
API Technologies Corp. (March 2011 to August 2012), formerly a
NASDAQ listed company. Mr. Lazar brings to the Board his experience in
management and aerospace manufacturing operations within our industry,
and significant mergers and acquisitions experience.

Michael J.
Ferrantino, Jr

48 2019 Chief Executive Officer, InterEx Inc., a full-service company specializing
in the design, fabrication, management and service of custom exhibit spaces
for the trade show retail and museum markets (2015 to present). Director,
LGL Systems Acquisition Corp. (September 2019 to present). From 2012
to 2014, Mr. Ferrantino was a Vice President at CTS Corporation (NYSE:
CTS), a leading designer and manufacturer of electronic components and
sensors, as well as a provider of electronics manufacturing services to
manufacturers in the automotive, communications, medical, defense and
aerospace industries. Prior to this, Mr. Ferrantino spent 11 years at Valpey-
Fisher Corporation (NASDAQ:VPF), a company specializing in the
marketing, design, and manufacture of high-accuracy frequency control
subsystems used in digital and optical telecommunications systems. Mr.
Ferrantino served in several leadership roles at VPF, most recently as the
President and Chief Executive Officer. Previously, Mr. Ferrantino served as
Vice President at Performax, Inc. from 2001 to 2003. Performax is a
company that specialized in the design, administration, and management of
fully customized health and benefit plans. From 2000 to 2001, Mr.
Ferrantino was a Vice President at Bicycle Health Benefits, Inc. after
beginning his career at Eaton Corporation as a Product Marketing Manager.
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Mr. Ferrantino currently serves on the board of directors of The Gabelli
Equity Trust Inc. and Gabelli Utility Trust. Mr. Ferrantino brings to our
board of directors his extensive business experience and contacts and
relationships within the manufacturing industry.

Executive Officers

The following table sets forth information regarding our executive officers as of December 31, 2019, including their
business experience for the past five years and prior years.

Name Age
Offices and Positions Held with the Company, Business Experience and Principal Occupation

for the Last Five Years
Ivan Arteaga 51 Mr. Arteaga's business experience, including his term in office, is listed in the

section above titled "Directors."

James W. Tivy 52 Chief Financial Officer, The LGL Group, Inc. (January 2018 to present); SVP,
Finance for INTL FCStone Securities Inc. (November 2012 to January 2017);
Group Controller, INTL FCStone Inc. (January 2008 to November 2012).

Family Relationshipstt

There are no family relationships among our executive officers and directors. Michael J. Ferrantino, Jr. is the son of
our former CEO, Michael J. Ferrantino, Sr., who resigned effective December 31, 2019.

Code of Ethics

We adopted a code of ethics as part of our Business Conduct Policy, which applies to all of our employees,
including our principal executive, financial and accounting officers. Our Business Conduct Policy is available at
www.lglgroup.com. Amendments to and waivers of our code of ethics and Business Conduct Policy will be
disclosed on our website.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board (the "Audit Committee") consists of Messrs. Hunter, Kalha and Foufas. The
Board has determined that all Audit Committee members are financially literate and independent under applicable
NYSE American listing standards. Mr. Hunter serves as Chairman of the Audit Committee, and the Board has
determined that he qualifies as the Audit Committee financial expert, as defined under the Exchange Act.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth information with respect to compensation earned by the named executive officers:

Name and Principal Position Year
Salary
($)

Bonus
($)

Stock
Awards (1)

($)

Option
Awards (1)

($)

All Other
Compensation

($)
Total
($)

Michael J. Ferrantino,
Sr........................................ 2019 215,987 80,785

(2)
� � 20,197

(4)
316,969

Chief Executive Officer..... 2018 215,987 350,000 (3) � � 7,611 (4) 573,598
(Retired December 31,
2019)

James W. Tivy ................... 2019 96,000 � � � 1,377 (5) 97,377
Chief Financial Officer...... 2018 104,991 � � � 911 (5) 105,902

(1) Reflects the aggregate grant date fair value of stock awards or option awards granted in the applicable year, computed
in accordance with Financial Accounting Standard Board Standards Codification Topic 718. For a discussion of the
assumptions and methodologies used to calculate these amounts, please see Note E � Stock-Based Compensation in the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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(2) Reflects Mr. Ferrantino's Annual Incentive Payment for 2018 (defined below) of $382,000 excluding $250,000
advanced from Mr. Ferrantino�s Annual Incentive Payment for 2018.

(3) Reflects Mr. Ferrantino's Annual Incentive Payment for 2017 (defined below) of $45,000 along with discretionary
bonuses of $55,000 awarded by the Company�s Board of Directors and including $250,000 advanced from Mr.
Ferrantino�s Annual Incentive Payment for 2018.

(4) Amounts include reimbursement of healthcare insurance costs and the personal income tax expense arising from those
costs, as well as matching contributions made by the Company to the individual's 401(k) plan.

(5) Amounts include reimbursement of travel expenses paid to consultant.

Employment Agreements

Michael J. Ferrantino, Sr.

Pursuant to an offer letter entered into between the Company and Michael J. Ferrantino, Sr. (the "Offer Letter") on
May 21, 2014, and as revised on January 11, 2017 (the �Revised Offer Letter�), Mr. Ferrantino was eligible to
receive an annual incentive payment (the "Annual Incentive Payment") based on the increase in the economic value
of the Company ("EV"), as further described in the Revised Offer Letter, over the prior fiscal year. The total amount
of the Annual Incentive Payments payable for any fiscal year shall be equal to 3.0% of the increase in EV over the
prior fiscal year. Mr. Ferrantino's Annual Incentive Payment is included in the Summary Compensation Table
above.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

There were no outstanding equity awards at fiscal year-end for any of the executives.

Non-Employee Director Compensation

The following table sets forth information with respect to compensation earned by or awarded to each non-employee
director who served on the Board during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019:

Name

Fees
Earned or
Paid in
Cash
($)

Stock
Awards
($) (1)

Total
($)

Marc J. Gabelli ....................................................................... 19,500 15,007 34,507
Timothy Foufas ...................................................................... 29,000 15,007 44,007
Donald H. Hunter ................................................................... 32,000 15,007 47,007
Manjit Kalha........................................................................... 37,752 10,505 48,257
Hendi Susanto (2)................................................................... 19,000 � 19,000
Bel Lazar ................................................................................ 23,500 15,007 38,507
Ivan Arteaga ........................................................................... 23,500 � 23,500
Michael Ferrantino ................................................................. 10,000 15,007 25,007

(1) On December 11, 2019, non-employee directors received grants of 1,030 shares of common stock for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2019, except for Mr. Kalha, who received a grant of 721 shares. These shares were granted under the
Amended and Restated 2011 Incentive Plan.

(2) Hendi Susanto left the Board effectiveff November 7, 2019.

In 2019, our directors also received the following in addition to the equity awards granted as part of their base
compensation: (i) their annual base cash compensation of $10,000; (ii) $2,000 for each meeting of the Board
attended in person or $750 for each meeting held telephonically; and (iii) the Audit Committee Chairman received a
$2,000 annual cash retainer and the Nominating Committee Chairman, and Compensation Committee Chairman
each received a $1,000 annual cash retainer.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

The following table sets forth information regarding the number of shares of our common stock beneficially owned
on March 27, 2020, by:

‒ Each person who is known to us to beneficially own more than 5% of our common stock;
‒ Each of our directors, nominees and named executive officers; and
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‒ All of our directors and executive officers, as a group.

The amounts and percentages of common stock beneficially owned are reported on the basis of regulations of the
SEC governing the determination of beneficial ownership of securities. Under the rules of the SEC, a person is
deemed to be a "beneficial owner" of a security if that person has or shares voting power, which includes the power
to vote or direct the voting of a security, or investment power, which includes the power to dispose of or to direct the
disposition of a security. A person is also deemed to be a beneficial owner of any securities of which that person has
a right to acquire beneficial ownership within 60 days. Under these rules, more than one person may be deemed a
beneficial owner of the same securities and a person may be deemed to be a beneficial owner of securities as to
which such person has no economic interest. Except as otherwise indicated in these footnotes, each of the beneficial
owners listed has, to our knowledge, sole voting and investment power with respect to the indicated shares of
common stock.

Except as otherwise set forth below, the address of each of the persons listed below is: The LGL Group, Inc., 2525
Shader Road, Orlando, Florida 32804.

Common Stock
Beneficially Owned (1)

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Shares %
5% Stockholders:
Mario J. Gabelli ....................................................... 976,073 (2) 18.7
Directors and Named Executive Officers:
Marc J. Gabelli......................................................... 827,271 (3) 15.9
Timothy Foufas........................................................ 30,930 (4) *
Manjit Kalha ............................................................ 30,929 (5) *
Donald H. Hunter..................................................... 18,903 (4) *
James W. Tivy ......................................................... 3,000 *
Bel Lazar .................................................................. 1,030 *
Michael Ferrantino................................................... 1,030 *
Ivan Arteaga............................................................. � *
All executive officers and directors as a group (8
persons) .................................................................... 913,093 (6) 17.5

* Less than 1% of outstanding shares.

(1) The applicable percentage of ownership for each beneficial owner is based on 5,210,788 shares of common stock
outstanding as of March 27, 2020. Shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options, warrants or other rights
beneficially owned that are exercisable within 60 days are deemed outstanding for the purpose of computing the
percentage ownership of the person holding such securities and rights and all executive officers and directors as a
group.

(2) Includes (i) 499,136 shares of common stock owned directly by Mario J. Gabelli; and (ii) 476,937 shares owned by
GGCP, Inc., of which Mario J. Gabelli is the chief executive officer, a director and controlling shareholder. Mario J.
Gabelli disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares owned by GGCP, Inc., except to the extent of his pecuniary
interest therein. Mario J. Gabelli's business address is 401 Theodore Fremd Avenue, Rye, New York 10580-1430. This
disclosure is based solely on information in a Form 4 filed by Mario J. Gabelli with the SEC on January 2, 2020.

(3) Includes (i) 62,968 shares of common stock owned directly by Marc J. Gabelli; and (ii) 764,303 shares held by Venator
Merchant Fund, L.P. ("Venator Fund"). Venator Global, LLC ("Venator Global"), which is the sole general partner of
Venator Fund, may be deemed to beneficially own the securities owned by Venator Fund. Marc J. Gabelli, who is the
President and Sole Member of Venator Global, may be deemed to beneficially own the securities owned by Venator
Fund. Marc J. Gabelli disclaims beneficial ownership of the securities owned by Venator Fund, except to the extent of
his pecuniary interest therein.

(4) Includes 1,266 shares issuable upon the exercise of options.
(5) Includes 20,785 shares issuable upon the exercise of options.
(6) Includes 889,766 shares of common stock and 23,317 shares issuable upon the exercise of options.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2019 about our common stock that may be issued
upon the exercise of options, warrants and rights under all of our existing equity compensation plans (including
individual arrangements):

Plan Category

Number of
securities to
be issued
upon

exercise of
outstanding
options,
warrants
and rights

(a)

Weighted-
average
exercise
price of

outstanding
options,
warrants
and rights

(b)

Number of
securities
remaining
available for
future
issuance

under equity
compensation

plans
(excluding
securities
reflected in
column(a))

(c)
Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders (1) ................................................................... 78,379 $ 7.43 401,347
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders ......................................................................... � � �

Total ................................................................. 78,379 $ 7.43 401,347

(1) The Amended and Restated 2011 Incentive Plan was approved by our stockholders on June 16, 2016. 750,000 shares of
common stock are authorized for issuance under the Amended and Restated 2011 Incentive Plan. Options to purchase
78,379 shares of common stock issued under the Amended and Restated 2011 Incentive Plan were outstanding as of
December 31, 2019.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

Transactions with Related Persons, Promoters and Certain Control Persons

Certain balances held and invested in various mutual funds are managed by a related entity (the "Fund Manager"),
which is related through a director who is also a 10% stockholder and currently serves as an executive officer of the
Fund Manager. As of December 31, 2019, and December 31, 2018, the balance with the Fund Manager totaled
$14,613,000 and $16,270,000, respectively. Fund management fees earned by the Fund Manager are anticipated to
average less than 0.35% of the asset balances under management on an annual basis. The brokerage and fund
transactions in 2019 and 2018 were directed solely at the discretion of the Company�s management.

Marc Gabelli, our Non-Executive Chairman also serves as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the SPAC and
has invested in the SPAC�s Sponsor, and is the initial managing member of LGL Systems Nevada Management
Partners LLC (�Nevada GP�), the manager of the SPAC�s Sponsor. Timothy Foufas, a member of LGL�s board of
directors, is also a member of the SPAC�s Sponsor and Chief Operating Officer of the SPAC, has invested in the
SPAC�s Sponsor and is a member of Nevada GP. Patrick Huvane, LGL�s senior vice president of business
development, is a member of both LGL and the SPAC�s management team. Michael J. Ferrantino, Jr., a member of
LGL�s board of directors, is also a member of the SPAC�s Sponsor and a board member for the SPAC. Under
separate arrangement, these people may be eligible to receive incentive compensation should the SPAC complete a
successful acquisition.

All transactions between us and any of our officers, directors, director nominees, principal stockholders or their
immediate family members are to be approved by the Audit Committee, and are to be on terms no less favorable to
us than we could obtain from unaffiliated third parties. Such policy and proceduresd are set forth in a resolution of the
Board.

Director Independence

As required under NYSE American rules, a majority of the members of a listed company's board of directors must
qualify as "independent," as affirmatively determined by such board of directors. The Board has determined that
Messrs. Foufas, Hunter, Kalha and Lazar are independent within the meaning of NYSE American rules.
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Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services Fees Billed During Fiscal 2019 and 2018

Audit Fees

Aggregate audit fees for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, were $262,630 and $221,634, respectively,
and include fees billed by RSM US LLP ("RSM") as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm
for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018. Audit fees include services relating to auditing the Company's
annual financial statements, reviewing the Company's financial statements included in the Company's quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q and annual report on Form 10-K.

Audit-Related Fees

During 2019, RSM rendered audit-related services in connection with the Company�s registration statement on Form
S-3 (Registration No. 333-235767) for the Company�s securities offering and charged fees of $37,800 during the
year ended December 31, 2019 for these services. RSM did not render any audit-related services during the year
ended December 31, 2018.

Tax Fees

During the year ended December 31, 2019, RSM rendered tax services in connection with the Company�s required
federal and state income tax reporting. Total fees charged during the year ended December 31, 2019 totaled $64,433.
RSM did not render any tax services during the year ended December 31, 2018.

All Other Fees

RSM did not render any other services during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

The Audit Committee policy and procedures for the pre-approval of audit and non-audit services rendered by our
independent registered public accounting firm are reflected in the Audit Committee Charter. The Audit Committee
Charter provides that the Audit Committee shall pre-approve all audit and non-audit services provided by the
independent registered public accounting firm and shall not engage the independent registered public accounting
firm to perform the specific non-audit services proscribed by law or regulation. The Audit Committee may delegate
pre-approval authority to a member of the Audit Committee. The decisions of any Audit Committee member to
whom pre-approval authority is delegated must be presented to the full Audit Committee at its next scheduled
meeting.

If any services other than audit services are rendered by our independent registered public accounting firm, the
Audit Committee determines whether such services are compatible with maintaining our independent registered
public accounting firm's independence.

All services performed by our independent registered public accounting firm were pre-approved by the Audit
Committee.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) List of documents filed as part of this report:

1. Financial Statements:
Page

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.................................................................................. 32

Consolidated Balance Sheets: December 31, 2019 and 2018................................................................................ 33

Consolidated Statements of Operations: Years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 .......................................... 34

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity: Years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 .......................... 35

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows: Years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 ......................................... 36

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.......................................................................................................... 37

2. Financial Statement Schedules:

None.

3. Exhibit Index

The following is a list of exhibits filed as part of this Form 10-K:

Exhibit No. Description

2.1 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of January 31, 2014, made by and between M-tron Industries,
Inc. and Trilithic, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on May 15, 2014).

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of The LGL Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 31, 2007).

3.2 The LGL Group, Inc. By-Laws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 31, 2007).

3.3 The LGL Group, Inc. Amendment No. 1 to By-Laws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 17, 2014).

3.4 The LGL Group, Inc. Amendment No. 2 to By-Laws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 21, 2020).

3.5 The LGL Group, Inc. Amendment No. 3 to By-Laws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 26, 2020).

4.1 Form of Subscription and Information Agent Agreement by and between The LGL Group, Inc. and
Broadridge Corporate Issuer Solutions, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Amendment
No. 1 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-218901) filed with
the SEC on August 21, 2017).

4.2 Form of Transferable Subscription Rights Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to
Amendment No. 1 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-
218901) filed with the SEC on August 21, 2017).

4.3 Form of Indenture (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Registration Statement
on Form S-3 (Registration No. 333-235767) filed with the SEC on December 31, 2019).

4.4 Description of Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.*.
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Exhibit No. Description
10.1 The LGL Group, Inc. 401(k) Savings Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(b) to the

Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on April 1, 1996). +

10.2 The LGL Group, Inc. 2001 Equity Incentive Plan adopted December 10, 2001 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed with the SEC on
December 29, 2005). +

10.3 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (2001 Equity Incentive Plan) by and between The LGL Group,
Inc. and each of its directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Company's Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 24, 2011). +

10.4 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (2001 Equity Incentive Plan) by and between The LGL Group,
Inc. and each of its executive officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 24, 2011). +

10.5 The LGL Group, Inc. Amended and Restated 2011 Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Annex
A of the Company's Definitive Proxy Statement with respect to the Company's 2016 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders, filed on April 29, 2016). +

10.6 Form of Stock Option Agreement (2011 Incentive Plan) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to
the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed with the SEC on December 30, 2011). +

10.7 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (2011 Incentive Plan) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3
to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed with the SEC on December 30, 2011). +

10.8 Form of Indemnification Agreement by and between The LGL Group, Inc. and its executive officers
and directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-
K filed with the SEC on March 24, 2011). +

10.9 Offer of Employment Letter, effective as of October 1, 2013, by and between The LGL Group, Inc.
and Michael J. Ferrantino (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 7, 2013). +

10.10 Agreement and Release, dated May 27, 2014, by and between Gregory P. Anderson and The LGL
Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on May 28, 2014). +

10.11 Agreement and Release, dated May 27, 2014, by and between James L. Williams and The LGL
Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on May 28, 2014). +

10.12 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of September 19, 2013, by and between the Company and
Venator Merchant Fund L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 19, 2013).

10.13 Loan Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2014, by and between M-tron Industries, Inc. and City
National Bank of Florida (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 2, 2014).

10.14 Revolving Promissory Note, dated as of September 30, 2014, by and between M-tron Industries, Inc.
and City National Bank of Florida (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 2, 2014).

10.15 Cash Collateral Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2014, by and between M-tron Industries, Inc.
and City National Bank of Florida (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 2, 2014).

10.16 Independent Contractor Agreement between The LGL Group, Inc. and James W. Tivy (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
February 6, 2018). +



30

Exhibit No. Description
21.1 Subsidiaries of The LGL Group, Inc.*

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm � RSM US LLP.*

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.*

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.*

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.**

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.**

101.INS XBRL Instance Document*

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document*

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document*

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document*

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document*

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document*

* Filed herewith

**Furnished herewith. In accordance with Item 601(b)(32) of Regulation S-K, this Exhibit is not deemed "filed" for
purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that section. Such certifications
will not be deemed incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, except to the extent that the registrant specifically incorporates it by
reference.
+ Indicates management or compensatory plan.

The exhibits listed above have been filed separately with the SEC in conjunction with this Annual Report on Form
10-K or have been incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Upon request, the Company
will furnish to each of its stockholders a copy of any such exhibit. Requests should be addressed to the Corporate
Secretary, The LGL Group, Inc., 2525 Shader Road, Orlando, Florida 32804.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary.

None.



31

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

THE LGL GROUP, INC.

March 30, 2020 By: /s/ Ivan Arteaga
Ivan Arteaga
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

SIGNATURE CAPACITY DATE

/s/ Ivan Arteaga
President, Chief Executive Officer

and Director March 30, 2020
IVAN ARTEAGA (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ James W. Tivy Chief Financial Officer March 30, 2020

JAMES W. TIVY (Principal Financial and Accounting
Officer)

/s/ Marc J. Gabelli Director March 30, 2020
MARC J. GABELLI

/s/ Timothy Foufas Director March 30, 2020
TIMOTHY FOUFAS

/s/ Donald H. Hunter Director March 30, 2020
DONALD H. HUNTER

/s/ Manjit Kalha Director March 30, 2020
MANJIT KALHA

/s/ Bel Lazar Director March 30, 2020
BEL LAZAR

/s/ Michael J. Ferrantino, Jr. Director March 30, 2020
MICHAEL J. FERRANTINO, JR.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of The LGL Group, Inc.

Opinion on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The LGL Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the
Company) as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders'
equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements
(collectively, the financial statements). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Basis for Opinion
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the Company�s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with
respect to the Company in accordance with U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of
the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform,
an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we are required to obtain an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits
also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

/s/ RSM US LLP

We have served as the Company�s auditor since 2011.

Orlando, Florida
March 30, 2020
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THE LGL GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Dollars in Thousands, Except per Share Amounts)

December 31,
2019 2018

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents............................................................................. $ 12,453 $ 15,508
Marketable securities..................................................................................... 5,631 3,775
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $109 and $40, respectively........ 4,445 3,394
Inventories, net .............................................................................................. 6,016 4,466
Prepaid expenses and other current assets..................................................... 365 242
Total Current Assets ................................................................................ 28,910 27,385

Property, Plant and Equipment
Land............................................................................................................... 536 536
Buildings and improvements......................................................................... 4,651 4,029
Machinery and equipment............................................................................. 17,527 17,012
Gross property, plant and equipment ............................................................ 22,714 21,577
Less: accumulated depreciation ................................................................. (19,883) (19,491)
Net property, plant and equipment ............................................................. 2,831 2,086

Right-of-use lease asset ...................................................................................... 331 �
Equity investment in unconsolidated subsidiary ................................................ 3,334 �
Intangible assets, net ........................................................................................... 402 477
Deferred income taxes, net ................................................................................. 3,307 127
Other assets......................................................................................................... 102 �

Total Assets ............................................................................................. $ 39,217 $ 30,075
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable .......................................................................................... $ 1,865 $ 1,418
Accrued compensation and commissions expense........................................ 1,832 1,143
Other accrued expenses................................................................................. 627 191
Total Current Liabilities .......................................................................... 4,324 2,752

Commitments and Contingencies (Note K)
Stockholders' Equity
Common stock, $0.01 par value - 10,000,000 shares authorized;
5,014,647 shares issued and 4,933,063 shares outstanding at December
31, 2019, and 4,912,762 shares issued and 4,831,178 shares outstanding at
December 31, 2018 ....................................................................................... 50 49
Additional paid-in capital.............................................................................. 41,576 41,023
Accumulated deficit ...................................................................................... (6,153) (13,169)
Treasury stock, 81,584 shares held in treasury at cost at December 31,
2019 and 2018 ............................................................................................... (580) (580)
Total Stockholders' Equity ............................................................................ 34,893 27,323
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity .................................................... $ 39,217 $ 30,075

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE LGL GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Years Ended December 31,
2019 2018

REVENUES........................................................................................................... $ 31,897 $ 24,870
Costs and expenses:
Manufacturing cost of sales............................................................................... 19,381 15,211
Engineering, selling and administrative ............................................................ 9,077 8,229

OPERATING INCOME......................................................................................... 3,439 1,430
Other Income:
Interest income, net ........................................................................................... 2 2
Loss on equity investment in unconsolidated subsidiary .................................. (16) �
Other income, net .............................................................................................. 484 138
Total other income, net ..................................................................................... 470 140

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES.............................................................. 3,909 1,570
Income tax (benefit) provision................................................................................ (3,107) 165
NET INCOME ...................................................................................................... $ 7,016 $ 1,405
Basic per share information:
Weighted average number of shares used in
basic earnings per share calculation .................................................................. 4,883,923 4,748,609
Basic net income per share................................................................................ $ 1.44 $ 0.30

Diluted per share information:
Weighted average number of shares used in
diluted earnings per share calculation ............................................................... 4,977,595 4,875,031
Diluted net income per share............................................................................. $ 1.41 $ 0.29

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE LGL GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(Dollars in Thousands)

Shares of
Common
Stock

Outstanding
Common
Stock

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Accumulated
Deficit

Treasury
Stock

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss) Total

Balance at December 31, 2017..... 4,692,893 $ 47 $ 40,035 $ (14,609) $ (580) $ 35 $ 24,928
Net income ................................... 1,405 1,405
Cumulative effect adjustment
from adoption of Accounting
Standards Update 2016-01 ........... 35 (35) �
Exercise of stock options.............. 9,376 27 27
Repurchase of shares
exercised....................................... (1,200) � �
Stock-based compensation ........... 6,516 � 64 64
Warrant dividend exercise............ 123,593 2 925 927
Issuance costs for rights
offering ......................................... (28) (28)
Balance at December 31,
2018.............................................. 4,831,178 49 41,023 (13,169) (580) � 27,323
Net income ................................... 7,016 7,016
Exercise of stock options.............. 96,748 1 441 442
Repurchase of shares
exercised....................................... (734) � �
Stock-based compensation ........... 5,871 � 112 112
Balance at December 31,
2019.............................................. 4,933,063 $ 50 $ 41,576 $ (6,153) $ (580) $ � $ 34,893

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE LGL GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Dollars in Thousands)

Years Ended December 31,
2019 2018

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income......................................................................................................... $ 7,016 $ 1,405
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation.................................................................................................... 418 417
Amortization of finite-lived intangible assets................................................. 75 75
Loss from equity investment in unconsolidated subsidiary............................ 16 �
Recovery of note receivable ........................................................................... � (4)
Stock-based compensation.............................................................................. 112 64
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense........................................................... (3,180) 46
(Gain) loss on marketable securities............................................................... (206) 28
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in accounts receivable, net ............................................................. (1,051) (1)
Increase in inventories, net........................................................................... (1,550) (591)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets ............................ (225) 92
Increase in accounts payable, accrued compensation
and commissions expense and other accrued liabilities......................... 1,241 125

Net cash provided by operating activities ..................................................... 2,666 1,656
INVESTING ACTIVITIES ............................................................................
Purchase of marketable securities................................................................... (5,050) �
Equity investment in unconsoldiated subsidiary ............................................ (3,350) �
Capital expenditures ....................................................................................... (1,163) (324)
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities................................................... 3,400 �
Net cash used in investing activities ............................................................... (6,163) (324)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Costs from issuance of common stock ........................................................... � (28)
Proceeds from warrant exercise...................................................................... � 927
Proceeds from stock option exercise .............................................................. 442 27
Net cash provided by financing activities ...................................................... 442 926
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ............................................. (3,055) 2,258
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ................................................ 15,508 13,250
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year .......................................................... $ 12,453 $ 15,508
Supplemental Disclosure:
Cash paid for interest ................................................................................... $ 6 $ 23
Cash paid for income taxes .......................................................................... $ 86 $ 69

Non-Cash Disclosure:
Right-of-use assets offset by operating lease liabilities ............................... $ 331 $ �

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE LGL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Accounting and Reporting Policies

Organization

The LGL Group, Inc. (the "Company"), incorporated in 1928 under the laws of the State of Indiana and
reincorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware in 2007, is a diversified holding company with subsidiaries
engaged in the design, manufacturing and marketing of highly-engineered, high reliability frequency and spectrum
control products used to control the frequency or timing of signals in electronic circuits and in the design of high
performance Frequency and Time Reference Standards that form the basis for timing and synchronization in various
applications.

As of December 31, 2019, the subsidiaries of the Company are as follows:
Owned By
The LGL
Group, Inc.

LGL Systems Acquisition Holding Company, LLC.......* 62.2%
M-tron Systems Holdings, LLC...................................... 100.0%
M-tron Industries, Inc. ............................................... 100.0%
Piezo Technology, Inc.......................................... 100.0%
Piezo Technology India Private Ltd. .............. 99.9%

M-tron Asia, LLC................................................. 100.0%
M-tron Industries, Ltd..................................... 100.0%
GC Opportunities Ltd................................ 100.0%

M-tron Services, Ltd. ........................................... 100.0%
Precise Time and Frequency, LLC ............................ 100.0%

Lynch Systems, Inc. ........................................................ 100.0%
* - Accounted for as an equity method investment

The Company operates through its two principal subsidiaries, M-tron Industries, Inc. ("MtronPTI"), which includes
the operations of Piezo Technology, Inc. ("PTI") and M-tron Asia, LLC ("Mtron"), and Precise Time and
Frequency, LLC ("PTF"). The Company has operations in Orlando, Florida; Yankton, South Dakota; Wakefield,
Massachusetts; and Noida, India. MtronPTI also has sales offices in Sacramento, California; Austin, Texas; and
Hong Kong.

The Company added three subsidiaries as part of an effort to reorganize the subsidiaries and to plan potential
available strategies for investments or acquisitions. These were Mtron Systems Holdings, LLC, LGL Systems
Acquisition Holdings Company, LLC (formerly: Mtron Systems Acquisition Holdings Company, LLC), and LGL
Systems Acquisition Corp. (formerly: Mtron Systems Acquisition Corp.). Mtron Systems Holdings, LLC is an
intermediate holding company set up to hold the assets and entities under MTron Industries, Inc. LGL Systems
Acquisition Holding Company, LLC is the sponsor (the �Sponsor�) of LGL Systems Acquisition Corp., a special
purpose acquisition company, commonly referred to as a �SPAC�, or blank check company, formed for the purpose
of effecting a business combination in the aerospace, defense and communications industries (the �SPAC�). On
November 7, 2019, the SPAC was deconsolidated as a result of an initial public offering (the �SPAC IPO�) which
raised $172.5 million from outside investors (See note C).

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and entities for which it has control.
Material intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated in consolidation.

The Company consolidates entities in which the Company has a controlling financial interest. The Company
determines whether it has a controlling financial interest in an entity by first evaluating whether the entity is a
variable interest entity (VIE).
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A variable interest in a VIE is an investment that will absorb portions of the VIE�s expected losses and/or receive
portions of the VIE�s expected residual returns. The Company�s variable interests in VIEs include limited
membership interests and common equity.

VIE Consolidation Analysisll

The enterprise with a controlling financial interest in a VIE is known as the primary beneficiary and consolidates the
VIE. The Company determines whether it is the primary beneficiary of a VIE by performing an analysis that
principally considers:

• Which variable interest holder has the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly
impact the VIE�s economic performance;

• Which variable interest holder has the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits from the
VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE;

• The VIE�s purpose and design, including the risks the VIE was designed to create and pass through to its
variable interest holders;

• The VIE�s capital structure;
• The terms between the VIE and its variable interest holders and other parties involved with the VIE; and
• Related-party relationships.

The Company reassesses its evaluation of whether an entity is a VIE when certain reconsideration events occur. The
Company reassesses its determination of whether it is the primary beneficiary of a VIE on an ongoing basis based on
current facts and circumstances.

Equity-Method Investments: When the Company does not have a controlling financial interest in an entity but can
exert significant influenff ce over the entity�s operating and financial policies, the investment is accounted for either (i)
under the equity method of accounting or (ii) at fair value by electing the fair value option available under U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (�GAAP�). Significant influence generally exists when the Company owns
20% to 50% of the entity�s common stock or in-substance common stock.

Uses of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of highly-liquid investments with no maturity or with a maturity of less than three
months when purchased.

Marketable Securities

Marketable equity securities are categorized as available-for-sale securities and are reported at fair value, with the
change in fair value being recorded in the consolidated statement of operations.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable, on a consolidated basis, consists principally of amounts due from both domestic and foreign
customers. Credit is extended based on an evaluation of the customer's financial condition and collateral is not
required. In relation to export sales, the Company requires letters of credit supporting a significant portion of the
sales price prior to production to limit exposure to credit risk. Certain credit sales are made to industries that are
subject to cyclical economic changes.

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its
customers to make required payments. These allowances are maintained at a level that management believes is
sufficient to cover potential credit losses. Estimates are based on historical collection experience, current trends,
credit policy and the relationship between accounts receivable and revenues. In determining these estimates, the
Company examines historical write-offs of its receivables and reviews each customer's account to identify any
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specific customer collection issues. If the financial condition of its customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payment, additional allowances might be required.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value using the FIFO (first-in, first-out) method.

The Company maintains a reserve for inventory based on estimated losses that result from inventory that becomes
obsolete or for which the Company has excess inventory levels as of period end. In determining these estimates, the
Company performs an analysis on current demand and usage for each inventory item over historical time periods.
Based on that analysis, the Company reserves a percentage of the inventory amount within each time period based
on historical demand and usage patterns of specific items in inventory.

Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and include expenditures for major
improvements. Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Depreciation is computed for
financial reporting purposes using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range
from 5 years to 35 years for buildings and improvements, and from 3 to 10 years for other fixed assets. Property,
plant and equipment are periodically reviewed for indicators of impairment. If any such indicators were noted, the
Company would assess the appropriateness of the assets' carrying value and record any impairment at that time.

Depreciation expense from operations was approximately $418,000 for 2019 and $417,000 for 2018.

Warranties

The Company offers a standard one-year warranty. The Company tests its products prior to shipment in order to
ensure that they meet each customer's requirements based upon specifications received from each customer at the
time its order is received and accepted. The Company's customers may request to return products for various
reasons, including, but not limited to, the customers' belief that the products are not performing to specification. The
Company's return policy states that it will accept product returns only with prior authorization and if the product
does not meet customer specifications, in which case the product would be replaced or repaired. To accommodate
the Company's customers, each request for return is reviewed, and if and when it is approved, a return materials
authorization ("RMA") is issued to the customer.

Each month, the Company records a specific warranty reserve for approved RMAs covering products that have not
yet been returned. The Company does not maintain a general warranty reserve because, historically, valid warranty
returns resulting from a product not meeting specifications or being non-functional have been de minimis. As of
December 31, 2019 and 2018, accrued warranty expense was $29,000 and $28,000, respectively.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is computed for financial
reporting purposes using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range up to 10
years. The intangible assets consist of intellectual property and goodwill. The net carrying value of the amortizable
intangible assets was $362,000 and $437,000 as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Goodwill, which is
not amortizable, was $40,000 as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.

The estimated aggregate amortization expense for intangible assets, excluding goodwill, for each of the remaining
years of the estimated useful life is as follows (in thousands):

2020 ................................................................................. $ 75
2021 ................................................................................. 75
2022 ................................................................................. 75
2023 ................................................................................. 75
2024 ................................................................................. 62
Total................................................................................. $ 362
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Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of its products in accordance with the criteria in Accounting
Standards Codification (�ASC�) 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which are:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract.
Step 3: Determine the transaction price.
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract.
Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The Company meets these conditions upon the Company�s satisfaction of the performance obligation, usually at the
time of shipment to the customer, because control passes to the customer at that time. Our standard terms for
customers are net due within 30 days, with a few exceptions, none regularly exceeding 60 days.

The Company provides disaggregated revenue details by segment in Note L � Segment Information, and geographic
markets in Note M � Domestic and Foreign Revenues.

The Company offers a limited right of return and/or authorized price protection provisions in its agreements with
certain electronic component distributors who resell the Company's products to original equipment manufacturers or
electronic manufacturing services companies. As a result, the Company estimates and records a reserve for future
returns and other charges against revenue at the time of shipment consistent with the terms of sale. The reserve is
estimated based on historical experience with each respective distributor. These reserves and charges are immaterial
as the Company does not have a history of significant price protection adjustments or returns. The Company
provides a standard assurance warranty that does not create a performance obligation.

Practical Expedients:x
- The Company applies the practical expedient for shipping and handling as fulfillment costs.
- The Company expenses sales commissions as sales and marketing expenses in the period they are incurred.

Shipping Costs

Amounts billed to customers related to shipping and handling are classified as revenue, and the Company's shipping
and handling costs are included in manufacturing cost of sales.

Research and Development Costs

Research and development costs are charged to operations as incurred. Such costs were approximately $2,004,000
and $1,947,000 in 2019 and 2018, respectively, and are included within engineering, selling and administrative
expenses.

Advertising Expense

Advertising costs are charged to operations as incurred. Such costs were approximately $2,000 in 2019, compared
with $24,000 in 2018, and are included within engineering, selling and administrative expenses.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company measures the cost of employee services in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the
grant-date fair value of the award and recognizes the cost over the requisite service period, typically the vesting
period.

The Company estimates the fair value of stock options on the grant date using the Black-Scholes-Merton option-
pricing model. The Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model requires subjective assumptions, including future
stock price volatility and expected time to exercise, which greatly affect the calculated values. There is no expected
dividend rate. Historical Company information was the basis for the expected volatility assumption as the Company
believes that the historical volatility over the life of the option is indicative of expected volatility in the future. The
risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury zero-coupon rates with a remaining term equal to the expected
term of the option. The Company records any forfeitures in the period that the shares are forfeited.

Restricted stock awards are made at a value equal to the market price of the Company's common stock on the date of
the grant.
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Earnings Per Share

The Company computes earnings per share in accordance with ASC 260, Earnings Per Share. Basic earnings per
share is computed by dividing net earnings by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted earnings per share adjusts basic earnings per share for the effects of stock options and other
potentially dilutive financial instruments, only in the periods in which the effects are dilutive.

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, there were options to purchase 25,000 shares and 15,606 shares,
respectively, of common stock that were excluded from the diluted earnings per share computation because the
impact of the assumed exercise of such stock options or warrants would have been anti-dilutive.

Years Ended December 31,
2019 2018

Weighted average shares outstanding - basic ..................................................... 4,883,923 4,748,609
Effect of diluted securities .................................................................................. 93,672 126,422
Weighted average shares outstanding - diluted .................................................. 4,977,595 4,875,031

Income Taxes

The Company's deferred income tax assets represent (a) temporary differences between the financial statement
carrying amount and the tax basis of existing assets and liabilities that will result in deductible amounts in future
years, and (b) the tax effecff ts of net operating loss carry-forwards.

The Company periodically undertakes a review of its valuation allowance and it evaluates all positive and negative
factors that may affect whether it is more likely than not that the Company would realize its future tax benefits from
its deferred tax balances. Pursuant to ASC 740, Income Taxes, the Company determined, during the year ended
December 31, 2019, that it is more likely than not that substantially all of our U.S. deferred tax assets including net
operating loss carryforwards (�NOLs�) and tax credits can be utilized in the foreseeable future and that a previously
recorded valuation allowance be reduced to record deferred tax assets at their expected net realizable value.

The Company recognizes interest and/or penalties, if any, related to income tax matters in income tax expense.

Concentration Risks

In 2019, the Company's largest customer, an electronics contract manufacturing company in the aerospace and
defense markets, accounted for $5,522,000, or 17.3%, of the Company's total revenues, compared to $4,436,000, or
17.8%, in 2018. The Company�s second largest customer, a defense contract manufacturer, accounted for
$3,187,000, or 10.0%, of the Company's total revenues, compared to $2,258,000, or 9.1%, in 2018.

A significant portion of the Company's accounts receivable is concentrated with a relatively small number of
customers. As of December 31, 2019, four of the Company's largest customers accounted for approximately
$1,841,000, or 40%, of accounts receivable. As of December 31, 2018, four of the Company's largest customers
accounted for approximately $1,043,000, or 30%, of accounts receivable. The Company carefully evaluates the
creditworthiness of its customers in deciding to extend credit, and utilizes letters of credit to further limit credit risk
for export sales. As a result of these policies, the Company has experienced very low historical bad debt expense and
believes the related risk to be minimal.

At various times throughout the year and at December 31, 2019 and 2018, some deposits held at financial
institutions were in excess of federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses related to these
balances.

Segment Information

The Company reports segment information in accordance with ASC 280, Segment Information ("ASC 280"). ASC
280 requires companies to report financial and descriptive information for each identified operating segment based
on management's internal organizational decision-making structure. Management has identified the Company�s two
segments as electronic components and electronic instruments.rr
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Impairments of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, including intangible assets subject to amortization, are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. Long-lived assets
are grouped with other assets to the lowest level to which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash
flows of other groups of assets and liabilities. Management assesses the recoverability of the carrying cost of the
assets based on a review of projected undiscounted cash flows. If an asset is held for sale, management reviews its
estimated fair value less cost to sell. Fair value is determined using pertinent market information, including
appraisals or broker's estimates, and/or projected discounted cash flows. In the event an impairment loss is
identified, it is recognized based on the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the estimated fair value of the
long-lived asset.

Financial Instruments

Cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts receivable, trade accounts payable, and accrued expenses are carried at
cost, which approximates fair value due to the short-term maturity of these instruments.

Foreign Currency Translation

The assets and liabilities of international operations are re-measured at the exchange rates in effect at the balance
sheet date for monetary assets and liabilities and at historical rates for non-monetary assets and liabilities, with the
related re-measurement gains or losses reported within the consolidated statement of operations. The results of
international operations are re-measured at the monthly average exchange rates. The Company's foreign subsidiaries
and respective operations' functional currency is the U.S. dollar. The Company has determined this based upon the
majority of transactions with customers as well as inter-company transactions and parental support being based in
U.S. dollars. The Company has recognized a re-measurement loss of $13,000 and $74,000, in 2019 and 2018,
respectively, which is included within other income, net in the consolidated statements of operations.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) issued Accounting Standards Update
(�ASU�) 2016-02, �Leases (Topic 842)�, to require lessees to recognize all leases, with limited exceptions, on the
balance sheet. The objective of this update is to increase transparency and comparability among organizations by
recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and disclosing key information about leasing
arrangements. Subsequently, the FASB issued ASU 2018-10, �Codification Improvements to Topic 842�, ASU
2018-11, �Targeted Improvements�, ASU 2018-20, �Narrow-Scope Improvements for Lessors�, and ASU 2019-01,
�Codification Improvements�, to clarify and amend the guidance in ASU 2016-02. The Company�s adoption of the
ASUs effective January 1, 2019 using the prospective basis resulted in the recording of lease assets and lease
liabilities of $142,000 on the consolidated balance sheet during the first quarter of 2019. The Company has elected
the practical expedient to exclude leases with terms less than one year from its calculations and disclosures.

B. Inventories

The Company reduces the value of its inventories to net realizable value when the net realizable value is believed to
be less than the cost of the item. The inventory reserve for obsolescence as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 was
$1,015,000 and $1,266,000, respectively.

December 31,
2019 2018
(in thousands)

Raw materials ............................................................... $ 2,134 $ 1,719
Work in process ............................................................ 2,640 1,807
Finished goods .............................................................. 1,242 940
Total Inventories, net .............................................. $ 6,016 $ 4,466
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C. Equity Investment in Unconsolidated Subsidiary

On November 6, 2019, the Company contributed $3.35 million to the Sponsor to fund the Sponsor�s purchase of
$5.2 million of private warrants in a private placement that closed simultaneously with the consummation of the
SPAC IPO. Each private warrant is exercisable to purchase one share of common stock of the SPAC at an exercise
price of $11.50 per share, subject to adjustment. The Company contributed 62.2% of the Sponsor�s risk capital to
effect the IPO, which corresponds to approximately a 43.57% membership interest in the Sponsor as of December
31, 2019.

The Company is involved with a VIE through its investment in the Sponsor, which was determined to be a VIE. The
Sponsor is managed by LGL Systems Nevada Management Partners LLC (�Nevada GP�), an affiliated entity
deemed to be under the significant influence of Marc Gabelli, the Company�s Chairman of the Board. The Company
has determined that it is not the primary beneficiary, as Nevada GP has the power to direct the activities of the
Sponsor that most significantly impact the Sponsor�s economic performance through an operating agreement. The
Company has determined that it has significant influence through Nevada GP as a result of Marc Gabelli, and will
therefore account for the Sponsor under the equity method of accounting. The Sponsor has recorded losses of
$26,000 during 2019, which are recognized by the Company in its statement of operations on its proportional equity
investment.

The Sponsor holds 20% of the shares in the SPAC along with 5,200,000 warrants at a strike price of $11.50. On
November 7, 2019, the SPAC raised $172.5 million through the sale of 17.25 million shares and was listed as a
publicly traded company on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the ticker symbol �DFNS�. The IPO closed on
November 12, 2019. Prior to and immediately following the IPO, the Sponsor held 4,312,500 shares of the SPAC,
which are restricted and non-tradable.

If the SPAC does not complete a business combination within 24 months from the closing of the SPAC�s initial
public offering, the proceeds from the sale of the private warrants will be used to fund the redemption of the shares
sold in the SPAC�s initial public offering (subject to the requirements of applicable law), and the private warrants
will expire worthless.

D. Related Party Transactions

Certain balances held and invested in various mutual funds are managed by g.research (the "Fund Manager"). Marc
Gabelli, our non-executive chairman of the board, who is also a greater than 10% stockholder, currently serves as an
executive officer of the Fund Manager. The brokerage and fund transactions in 2019 and 2018 were directed solely
at the discretion of the Company�s management.

As of December 31, 2019, the balance with the Fund Manager totaled $14,613,000, including $8,992,000 which is
classified within cash and cash equivalents on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, and $5,621,000 which
is classified as marketable securities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Amounts invested generated
$493,000 of realized and unrealized investment income during 2019 that is included within other income, net on the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

As of December 31, 2018, the balance with the Fund Manager totaled $16,270,000, including $12,506,000 which is
classified within cash and cash equivalents on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet, and $3,764,000 which
is classified as marketable securities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Amounts invested generated
$203,000 of realized and unrealized investment income during 2018 that is included within other income, net on the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

Fund management fees earned by the Fund Manager are anticipated to average less than 0.35% of the asset balances
under management on an annual basis.

Marc Gabelli, our Non-Executive Chairman also serves as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the SPAC and
has invested in the Sponsor, and is the initial managing member of Nevada GP. Timothy Foufas, a member of
LGL�s board of directors, is also a member of the Sponsor and Chief Operating Officer of the SPAC, has invested in
the Sponsor and is a member of Nevada GP. Patrick Huvane, LGL�s senior vice president of business development,
is a member of both the Company and the SPAC�s management team. Michael J. Ferrantino, Jr., a member of the
Company�s board of directors, is also a member of the Sponsor and a board member for the SPAC. Under separate
arrangement, these people may be eligible to receive incentive compensation should the SPAC complete a
successful acquisition.
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On May 2, 2019, the Company agreed to loan the Sponsor an aggregate of up to $150,000 to cover expenses related
to the SPAC IPO pursuant to a promissory note (the �Note�). This loan was non-interest bearing and payable on the
earlier of (i) April 30, 2020, (ii) the completion of the SPAC IPO or (iii) the date on which the Company determined
not to proceed with the SPAC IPO. The Note was repaid on December 19, 2019.

E. Stock-Based Compensation

On August 4, 2011, the Company's stockholders approved the 2011 Incentive Plan. 500,000 shares of common stock
were authorized for issuance under the 2011 Incentive Plan. On June 16, 2016, the Company's stockholders
approved the Amended and Restated 2011 Incentive Plan which increased the shares of common stock authorized
for issuance to 750,000 shares of common stock. The Company believes that such awards better align the interests
of its employees with those of its shareholders. Option awards are generally granted with an exercise price either at
or 10% above the market price of the Company's stock at the date of grant; those option awards generally have 5-
year contractual terms and generally vest over three years. Restricted stock awards are granted at a value equal to the
market price of the Company's common stock on the date of grant.

The following table summarizes the inputs to the option valuation model for the options granted during the years
ended December 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018
Expected volatility........................................ 40% 31%
Dividend rate ................................................ 0% 0%
Expected term (in years) .............................. 3.55 3.55
Risk-free rate ................................................ 1.63% 2.65%

The Company bases expected volatility on the weighted average historical stock volatility of the Company's
common stock. There is no dividend rate, as dividends are not expected to be paid. The expected term utilizes
historical data to estimate the period of time that the options are expected to remain unexercised. The Company
bases risk-free rates on the U.S. Treasury zero-coupon rates with a remaining term equal to the expected term of the
option. The Company records any forfeitures in the period that the shares are forfeited.

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2019:

Number of
Shares

Outstanding

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Term

(in years)

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

(in thousands)
Option Balances at December
31, 2018 ..................................... 153,877 $ 4.75 $ 1.18 2.0 $ 208
Options Granted......................... 25,000 12.72 4.02
Options Exercised...................... (96,748) 4.68 1.26
Options Forfeited....................... (3,750) 3.90 0.89
Option Balances at December
31, 2019 ..................................... 78,379 $ 7.43 $ 2.00 2.7 $ 593
Options Exercisable at
December 31, 2019.................... 45,317 $ 4.74 $ 1.02 1.4 $ 465

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted during the years 2019 and 2018 was $4.02 and $1.65,
respectively. As of December 31, 2019, there was approximately $105,000 of total unrecognized compensation
expense related to unvested share-based compensation arrangements, which will be recognized over 2.7 years.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company issued 5,871 shares with a weighted average grant date fair
value of $14.57 per share. These shares were fully vested on the date of issuance. As of December 31, 2019, there
were no unvested restricted shares granted under the Amended and Restated 2011 Incentive Plan.

The Amended and Restated 2011 Incentive Plan had 407,218 shares remaining available for future issuance at
December 31, 2019.
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F. Income Taxes

The Company periodically undertakes a review of its valuation allowance and it evaluates all positive and negative
factors that may affect whether it is more likely than not that the Company would realize its future tax benefits from
its deferred tax balances. In 2014, the Company introduced a number of changes, most notably the decision to exit
the low-margin, high-volume telecommunications market and focus on engineered solutions in the aerospace and
defense markets. This turnaround plan was engineered and executed by the Company�s previous chief executive
officer, with the consent of the Board of Directors and participation by management. Over the following five years,
the negative factors that caused the Company to produce continuing losses in the U.S. tax jurisdiction were
eliminated, with the result being sustained increases in the Company�s sales, revenues, and backlog. Margins from
its new and improved products and services have continually increased and the Company maintains a strong backlog
of orders with its customers to support the assertion that it is more likely than not that substantially all of its net
deferred tax assets will be utilized and that associated valuation allowances should be eliminated.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, the Company considers whether it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will or will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax
assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary
differences become realizable. Based upon the weighting of positive and negative evidence, the Company has
determined the results of future operations of one of its foreign subsidiaries will generate enough taxable income
that it is more likely than not that deferred tax assets of $67,000 at December 31, 2019, generated from foreign
NOLs, can be utilized in the foreseeable future. In the third quarter of 2019, the Company further determined that a
full valuation against the remaining net deferred tax assets was no longer required and reversed a previously
recorded valuation allowance, recording deferred tax assets at the amount that is more likely than not to be realized.

The net balance of the deferred tax asset was approximately $5.2 million as of December 31, 2018, with a related
valuation allowance of $5.1 million. Through the nine months ended September 30, 2019, the Company was able to
realize $0.7 million of its deferred tax assets as a result of its profitable operations. At September 30, 2019, the
Company wrote off $0.7 million of deferred tax assets and the related valuation allowance for certain deferred tax
assets which were no longer realizable, and released $3.3 million from its valuation allowance, representing the net
realizable portion of its U.S. deferred tax assets, with the balance of the valuation allowance of $0.4 million
covering that portion of the Company�s U.S. deferred tax assets which are not expected to be realized, relating to
research and development tax credits. Should a change in circumstances lead to a change in judgment about the
ability to realize deferred tax assets in future years, the Company will adjust related valuation allowances in the
period that the change in circumstances occurs, along with a corresponding increase or charge to income.

Income tax (benefit) provision for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 is as follows:
2019 2018
(in thousands)

Current:
Federal..................................................................... $ � $ (57)
State and local ......................................................... 30 20
Foreign .................................................................... 43 156

Total Current................................................................. 73 119
Deferred:ff
Federal..................................................................... 1,322 616
State and local ......................................................... 147 (86)
Foreign .................................................................... 60 46

Total before change in valuation allowance ................. 1,529 576
Change in valuation allowance..................................... (4,709) (530)
Net deferred .................................................................. (3,180) 46
Income tax (benefit) provision...................................... $ (3,107) $ 165
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A reconciliation of the (benefit) provision for income taxes and the amount computed by applying the statutory
federal income tax rate to income before income taxes is detailed below:

2019 2018
(in thousands)

Tax provision at expected statutory rate....................... $ 821 $ 330
State taxes, net of federal benefitff .................................. 92 43
Permanent differences .................................................. 34 122
Credits........................................................................... (108) (82)
Foreign tax expense, and other ..................................... 13 420
Change in rate ............................................................... 63 (138)
Change in valuation allowance..................................... (4,709) (530)
Permanent true-ups ....................................................... 687 �
(Benefit) provision for income taxes ............................ $ (3,107) $ 165

Deferred income taxes for 2019 and 2018 were provided for the temporary differences between the financial
reporting basis and the tax basis of the Company's assets and liabilities. Tax effects of temporary differences and
carry-forwards at December 31, 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Deferred Tax Deferred Tax

Asset Liability Asset Liability
(in thousands)

Inventory reserve........................................................ $ 239 $ � $ 301 $ �
Fixed assets ................................................................ � 100 � 90
Other reserves and accruals........................................ 358 � 207 �
Stock-based compensation ......................................... 6 � 23 �
Other........................................................................... � 18 � 24
Tax credit carry-forwardsrr ........................................... 1,724 � 1,966 �
Federal tax loss carry-forwards .................................. 1,169 � 1,980 �
State tax loss carry-forwards ...................................... 250 � 734 �
Foreign tax loss carry-forwards.................................. 67 � 127 �
Total deferred income taxes ....................................... 3,813 $ 118 5,338 $ 114
Valuation allowance................................................... (388) (5,097)
Net deferred tax assets................................................ $ 3,307 $ 127

Deferred tax assets totaled $3.7 million at December 31, 2019, which includes the tax effect of federal, state, and
foreign net operating loss carryforwards and our federal tax credits. We recognize federal, state, and foreign net
operating loss carryforwards and our federal tax credits as deferred tax assets, subject to valuation allowances. At
each balance sheet date, we estimate the amount of carryforwards that are not expected to be used prior to expiration
of the carryforward period.

The Company has a total gross federal NOL carry-forward of $5,565,000 as of December 31, 2019. This federal
NOL carry-forward expires through 2038 if not utilized prior to that date. The Company has total state NOL carry-
forwards of $6,680,000 as of December 31, 2019. These state NOL balances have unlimited carryforward periods.
The Company has research and development tax credit carry-forwards of approximately $1,724,000 at
December 31, 2019 that can be used to reduce future income tax liabilities and expire principally between 2020 and
2038. The tax effect of the carryforwards that are not expected to be used prior to their expiration is included in the
valuation allowance. At December 31, 2019, the balance in the Company�s valuation allowance was $388,000,
consisting primarily of research and development tax credits expiring between 2020 and 2024.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal, various state, Hong Kong and India jurisdictions. The
statute of limitations for assessment by the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") and state tax authorities is open for tax
returns for years ended December 31, 2016, 2017 and 2018, although carry-forward attributes that were generated
prior to tax year 2016, including NOL carry-forwards and tax credits, may still be adjusted upon examination by the
IRS or state tax authorities if they either have been or will be used in a future period. The Company is generally
subject to examinations by foreign tax authorities from 2014 to the present.
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The Company will recognize any interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax positions in income tax expense.
At the date of adoption of ASC 740, the Company did not have a liability for unrecognized tax positions. As of
December 31, 2019, management assessed the balances of its deferred tax assets and liabilities and has determined
that it has not taken any aggressive tax positions that may be considered uncertain under ASC 740-10.

G. Leases

We lease certain manufacturing and office space and equipment. We determine if an arrangement is a lease at
inception. A contract is or contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of identified property,
plant, or equipment (an identified asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Amounts associated with
operating leases are included in right-of-use lease assets, and other accrued expense in our consolidated balance
sheet. Right-of-use lease assets represent our right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities
represent our obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. Right-of-use lease assets and liabilities are
recognized at the lease commencement date based on the estimated present value of lease payments over the lease
term. We use our incremental borrowing rate based on the information available at the lease commencement date in
determining the present value of lease payments. Leases with an initial term of 12 months or less are not recorded on
the balance sheet, and we recognize lease expense for these leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Certain leases include one or more options to renew, with renewal terms that can extend the lease term from one to
10 years or more, and the exercise of lease renewal options under these leases is at our sole discretion. Our lease
agreements do not contain any material residual value guarantees or material restrictive covenants.

Rent expense under operating leases was $430,000 and $393,000 for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. The Company leases certain property and equipment, including warehousing, and sales and distribution
equipment, under operating leases that extend from one to five years. Certain of these leases have renewal options.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, we renewed a lease on one of our facilities, resulting in the addition of
$318,000 in right-of-use lease assets in exchange for operating lease liabilities.

Our lease obligation payable of $331,000 is included within other accrued expenses on the consolidated balance
sheet at December 31, 2019.

Future minimum lease payment obligations under operating leases are as follows (in thousands):
2019 2018

2020........................................................................ $ 92 $ 35
2021........................................................................ 62 26
2022........................................................................ 64 �
2023........................................................................ 64 �
2024........................................................................ 63 �
Thereafter............................................................... � �
Total lease payments ........................................ 345 61
Less: interest..................................................... (14) (3)
Total lease payments ........................................ $ 331 $ 58

H. Stockholders' Equity

Share Repurchase Program

On August 29, 2011, the Board authorized the Company to repurchase up to 100,000 shares of its common stock in
accordance with applicable securities laws. This authorization increased the total number of shares authorized and
available for repurchase under the Company's existing share repurchase program to 540,000 shares, at such times,
amounts and prices as the Company shall deem appropriate. As of December 31, 2019, the Company had
repurchased a total of 81,584 shares of common stock at a cost of $580,000, which shares are currently held in
treasury.
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I. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value guidance identifies three primary
valuation techniques: the market approach, the income approach and the cost approach. The market approach uses
prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or
liabilities. The income approach uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts such as cash flows or earnings,
to a single present amount. The measurement is based on the value indicated by current market expectations about
those future amounts. The cost approach is based on the amount that currently would be required to replace the
service capacity of an asset.

The fair value hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad
levels. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to observable inputs such as quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The
maximization of observable inputs and the minimization of the use of unobservable inputs are required.

Classification within the fair value hierarchy is based upon the objectivity of the inputs that are significant to the
valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. The three levels within the fair value hierarchy are
characterized as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the
ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include: quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted
prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; inputs other than quoted prices that
are observable for the asset or liability; and inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable
market data by correlation or other means.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability for which there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or
liability at the measurement date. Unobservable inputs reflect the Company's own assumptions about what market
participants would use to price the asset or liability. These inputs may include internally developed pricing models,
discounted cash flow methodologies, as well as instruments for which the fair value determination requires
significant management judgment.

Assets

To estimate the market value of its cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities, the Company obtains
current market pricing from quoted market sources or uses pricing for identical securities. Assets measured at fair
value on a recurring basis are summarized below.

(in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Total
December 31,

2019
Marketable Equity Security.... $ 10 $ � $ � $ 10
Equity Mutual Fund ............... $ � $ 5,621 $ � $ 5,621
U.S. Treasury Mutual Fund.... $ 8,915 $ � $ � $ 8,915

(in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Total
December 31,

2018
Marketable Equity Security.... $ 11 $ � $ � $ 11
Equity Mutual Fund ............... $ � $ 3,764 $ � $ 3,764
U.S. Treasury Mutual Fund.... $ 12,506 $ � $ � $ 12,506

There were no transfers to or from level 2 to level 3 during the reporting periods. The Company also has assets that
may be subject to measurement at fair value on a non-recurring basis, including goodwill and intangible assets, and
other long-lived assets. There were no liabilities subject to fair value on a non-recurring or recurring basis as of
December 31, 2019 or 2018.
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As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, The Company had investments in two mutual funds. The Equity Mutual Fund
noted above is invested in the Gabelli ABC Fund, and the U.S. Treasury Mutual Fund is invested in the Gabelli US
Treasury Money Market Fund.

The Company reviews goodwill annually and the carrying value of long-lived assets whenever events and
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets may not be recoverable. If it is determined that the
assets are impaired, the carrying value would be reduced to estimated recoverable value.

J. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company offers a defined contribution plan for eligible employees, in which the Company makes discretionary
contributions up to 50% of the first 6% of eligible compensation contributed by participants. The Company
contributed approximately $115,000 and $118,000 in discretionary contributions during 2019 and 2018,
respectively. Participants vest in employer contributions starting after their second year of service at 20%
increments, vesting 100% in year six.

K. Commitments and Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Company and its subsidiaries may become defendants in certain product
liability, patent infringement, worker claims and other litigation. The Company records a liability when it is
probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount is reasonably estimable. The Company is not involved in any
legal proceedings other than routine litigation arising in the normal course of business, none of which the Company
believes will have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition or results of operations.
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L. Segment Information

The Company has identified two reportable business segments from operations: electronic components, which
includes all products manufactured and sold by MtronPTI, and electronic instruments, which includes all products
manufactured and sold by PTF. The Company's foreign operations in Hong Kong and India fall under MtronPTI.

Operating income is equal to revenues less cost of sales and operating expenses, excluding investment income,
interest expense, and income taxes. Identifiable assets of the segment are those used in its operations and exclude
general corporate assets. General corporate assets are principally cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments
and certain other investments and receivables.

Years Ended December 31,
2019 2018
(in thousands)

Revenues from Operations
Electronic components.................................................. $ 30,553 $ 23,793
Electronic instruments .................................................. 1,344 1,077
Total consolidated revenues .................................... $ 31,897 $ 24,870

Operating Income from Operations
Electronic components.................................................. $ 4,726 $ 2,525
Electronic instruments .................................................. 257 49
Unallocated corporate expense ..................................... (1,544) (1,144)
Consolidated total operating income....................... 3,439 1,430

Interest income, net....................................................... 2 2
Loss on equity investment in unconsoldiated
subsidiary...................................................................... (16) �
Other income, net.......................................................... 484 138
Total other income .................................................. 470 140

Income Before Income Taxes..................................... $ 3,909 $ 1,570
Capital Expenditures
Electronic components.................................................. $ 1,163 $ 324
Electronic instruments .................................................. � �
General corporate.......................................................... � �
Total capital expenditures ....................................... $ 1,163 $ 324

Total Assets
Electronic components.................................................. $ 9,863 $ 11,877
Electronic instrumentrr s .................................................. 706 861
General corporate.......................................................... 28,648 17,337
Consolidated total assets ......................................... $ 39,217 $ 30,075

M. Domestic and Foreign Revenues

Significant foreign revenues from operations (10% or more of foreign sales) were as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2019 2018
(in thousands)

Malaysia........................................................................ $ 4,329 $ 3,153
All other foreign countries ......................................... 4,171 3,044
Total foreign revenues .................................................. $ 8,500 $ 6,197
Total domestic revenues ............................................... $ 23,397 $ 18,673

The Company allocates its foreign revenue based on the customer's ship-to location.
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N. Subsequent Events

ATM Program

On January 22, 2020, the Company entered into an Open Market Sale Agreement (the �Agreement�) with Jefferies
LLC, as sales agent (�Jefferies�), pursuant to which the Company may offer and sell, from time to time, through
Jefferies, shares of the Company�s common stock, par value $0.01 per share, having an aggregate offering price of
up to $15,000,000 (the �Shares�).

The Company is not obligated to sell any Shares under the Agreement. Subject to the terms and conditions of the
Agreement, Jefferies will use commercially reasonable efforts, consistent with its normal trading and sales practices
and applicable laws and regulations, to sell Shares from time to time based upon the Company�s instructions,
including any price, time or size limits specified by the Company, subject to certain limitations. Under the
Agreement, Jefferies may sell the Shares by any method permitted by law deemed to be an �at the market offff erff ing�
as defined in Rule 415(a)(4) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, including block transactions, sales made
directly on the NYSE American or sales made into any other existing trading market of the Company�s common
stock.

Shares sold under the Agreement will be issued pursuant to the shelf registration statement on Form S-3 (File No.
333-235767), filed by the Company with the SEC on December 31, 2019, which was declared effective on January
8, 2020. The Company filed a prospectus supplement with the SEC on January 23, 2020 in connection with the offer
and sale of the common shares pursuant to the Agreement.

Through the date of this report, there have been 263,725 shares sold under this Agreement, at an average price per
share of $13.65 and generating net proceeds of approximately $3,491,000.

Novel Coronavirus Outbreak

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the novel coronavirus outbreak (�COVID-19�) a
pandemic. COVID-19 could impact the Company�s operations, suppliers and/or customers in a significant way. Any
disruptions to the Company�s operations, or those of our suppliers or customers, may adversely impact the
Company�s revenues and operating results. COVID-19 could also adversely affect the economies and financial
markets of many countries, including other countries in which the Company operates, with a resulting economic
downturn that may affect demand for our products.

The extent to which COVID-19 impacts the Company�s results will depend on future developments, including new
information which may emerge concerning the severity and global spread of COVID-19 and any governmental or
state actions taken to contain its impact, which efforts are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted.

Our production facility in Orlando is situated in Orange County, whose mayor declared a stay-in-place order
beginning March 26, 2020 at 11pm for two weeks. Our MtronPTI business within that production facility operates
as a manufacturer within the defense and aerospace market and qualifies as an essential industry, not subject to
general quarantine or stay-in-place orders.

Our production facility in Noida, India, has been impacted by the Indian government�s nationwide lockdown,
beginning March 25, 2020 and expected to be in place for 21 days, and all production activities have ceased.

The company continues to assess the potential impact of COVID-19, which remains uncertain at this time.

Adverse Impact on Operating Unit Liquidity

Mtron Systems Holdings, LLC and Precise Time and Frequency, LLC do not have existing lines of credit in place.
Current cash and liquidity may not be sufficient if there is a prolonged disruption of their operations (see discussion
above), and such events could have a significant detrimental impact on the liquidity of our subsidiaries. It is
unknown whether viable alternatives to access liquidity will be available, and/or if our subsidiaries, respectively,
will qualify for prospective sources of liquidity. Such includes the possibility to draw capital from the parent LGL
Group, Inc.

Global Financial Market Downturn

With the recent downturn in the financial markets, as a result of COVID-19 and other factors, our marketable
securities have suffered losses totaling around $0.3 million, or approximately 5.5% as of the market close on March
27, 2020.
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Joan Atkinson Nano, CPA
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